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Explanatory Note

This Amendment No. 1 on Form 8-K/A (“Amendment No. 1”) amends Item 2.01 and Item 9.01 of the Current 
Report on Form 8-K filed by Leafly Holdings, Inc. (formerly known as Merida Merger Corp.) (the “Company”) on 
February 10, 2022 (the “8-K”), in which the Company reported, among other events, the completion of the Business 
Combination (as defined in the 8-K).

This Amendment No. 1 (i) amends certain disclosures under Item 2.01 of the 8-K to provide an update of 
developments at the Company, subsequent to the filing date of the 8-K; (ii) amends the financial statements provided 
under Item 9.01(a) in the 8-K to include the audited financial statements of Leafly Holdings, Inc. prior to the closing 
of the Business Combination (“Leafly”) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021, the Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations of Leafly for the year ended December 
31, 2021; (iii) amends the pro forma financial information provided under Item 9.01(b) in the 8-K to include the 
unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations of the Company for the year ended December 31, 
2021 and the unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet of the Company as of December 31, 2021 and 
(iv) adds the exhibits included below under Item 9.01(d).

This Amendment No. 1 does not amend any other item of the 8-K or purport to provide an update or a discussion of 
any developments at the Company or its subsidiaries, including Leafly, subsequent to the filing date of the 8-K. The 
information previously reported in or filed with the 8-K is hereby incorporated by reference to this Form 8-K/A.

Item 2.01. Completion of Acquisition or Disposition of Assets.

Business and Properties

The information set forth in the section of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 31, 2022 
(“Form 10-K”) entitled “Business” beginning on page 2 and entitled “Properties” beginning on page 49 is 
incorporated herein by reference.

Risk Factors

The information set forth in the section of the Form 10-K entitled “Risk Factors” beginning on page 10 is 
incorporated herein by reference.

Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information

The information set forth in Exhibit 99.3 to this Amendment No. 1 is incorporated herein by reference.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The information set forth in Exhibit 99.2 to this Amendment No. 1 is incorporated herein by reference.

Executive Compensation and Director Compensation

The information set forth in the section of the 8-K entitled “Directors and Executive Officers - Compensatory  
Arrangements of Certain Officers and Directors” beginning on page 10 is incorporated herein by reference, except 
that the disclosure under the heading “Summary Compensation Table” is amended in its entirety to be replaced with 
the information under this same heading in the Current Report on Form 8-K that we filed with the SEC on March 17, 
2022.

Legal Proceedings

The information set forth in the section of the Form 10-K entitled “Legal Proceedings” beginning on page 49 is 
incorporated herein by reference.



Financial Statements, Supplementary Data and Exhibits

The information set forth in sections (a), (b) and (d) of Item 9.01 of this Amendment No. 1 is incorporated herein by 
reference.

Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits.

(a)       Financial statements of business acquired

1. Audited consolidated financial statements of Leafly as of and for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 
December 31, 2020 are filed herewith as Exhibit 99.1 and incorporated by reference herein.

 
2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations of Leafly for the 

year ended December 31, 2021 is filed herewith as Exhibit 99.2 and incorporated by reference herein.

(b)       Pro Forma Financial Information

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations of the Company for the year ended December 
31, 2021 and the unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet of the Company as of December 31, 2021, 
are attached hereto as Exhibit 99.3 and are incorporated by reference herein.

(d)        Exhibits

Exhibit Number Description
99.1 Audited consolidated financial statements of Leafly as of and for the years ended December 

31, 2021 and December 31, 2020
99.2 Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

of Leafly for the year ended December 31, 2021
99.3 Unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations of the Company for the 

year ended December 31, 2021 and unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet 
of the Company as of December 31, 2021

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL)

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be 
signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

Dated: March 31, 2022  

LEAFLY HOLDINGS, INC..

By: /s/ Yoko Miyashita 
Yoko Miyashita
Chief Executive Officer



[This page intentionally left blank] 



Exhibit 99.1

Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm    ................................................................................. 2
Consolidated Balance Sheets    ................................................................................................................................. 3
Consolidated Statements of Operations  ................................................................................................................. 4
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)     ................................................................................. 5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows    ............................................................................................................... 6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements   ......................................................................................................... 7

1



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of 
Leafly Holdings, Inc.

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Leafly Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) as of December 
31, 2021 and 2020, the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity (deficit) and cash 
flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2021 and the related notes (collectively referred to as the 
“financial statements”).  In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Company as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of 
the two years in the period ended December 31, 2021, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on the Company's financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public 
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) ("PCAOB") and are required to be independent with respect to the 
Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, 
whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its 
internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control 
over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal 
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test 
basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2019.

/s/ Marcum LLP

San Jose, CA 

March 31, 2022

PCAOB ID # 688
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LEAFLY HOLDINGS, INC

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

December 31,
2021 2020

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 28,565 $ 4,818 
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,848 and $1,131, 

respectively  2,958  2,398 
Deferred transaction costs  2,840  — 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets  1,347  1,608 
Restricted cash  130  116 

Total current assets  35,840  8,940 
Property and equipment, net  313  523 

Total assets $ 36,153 $ 9,463 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Current liabilities

Accounts payable $ 3,048 $ 1,599 
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities  8,325  3,565 
Related party payables  —  645 
Deferred revenue  1,975  1,585 
Convertible promissory notes, net  31,377  — 

Total current liabilities  44,725  7,394 

 Commitments and contingencies (Note 7)

Stockholders' equity (deficit)
Series A preferred stock; $0.0001 par value; 20,033 authorized, 18,702 issued and 
outstanding, and aggregate liquidation preference of $19,436 at December 31, 2021 
and December 31, 2020, respectively  2  2 
Common stock; $0.0001 par value; 211,251 and 209,651 authorized at December 31, 
2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively; 76,412 and 75,395 shares issued and 
outstanding at December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively  8  8 
Additional paid-in capital  61,188  59,805 
Accumulated deficit  (69,770)  (57,746) 

Total stockholders' equity (deficit)  (8,572)  2,069 
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity (deficit) $ 36,153 $ 9,463 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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LEAFLY HOLDINGS, INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands except per share amounts)

Year Ended
December 31,

2021 2020
Revenue $ 43,036 $ 36,392 
Cost of revenue  4,983  4,962 

Gross profit  38,053  31,430 
Operating expenses

Sales and marketing  19,640  13,189 
Product development  13,896  14,485 
General and administrative  15,142  13,052 

Total operating expenses  48,678  40,726 
Loss from operations  (10,625)  (9,296) 
Interest expense, net  (1,349)  (637) 
Other expense, net  (50)  (31) 
Net loss $ (12,024) $ (9,964) 

Basic and diluted loss per share $ (0.16) $ (0.13) 
Weighted-average basic and diluted shares outstanding  75,791  76,431 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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LEAFLY HOLDINGS, INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)

(in thousands)

Series A Preferred 
Stock

Class 1, Class 2, and 
Class 3 Common Stock Additional

Paid-In 
Capital

Accumulated
Deficit TotalShares Amount Shares Amount

Balance at January 1, 2020 — $ — 76,776 $ 8 $ 42,588 $ (47,782) $ (5,186) 
Net loss — — — — — (9,964) (9,964) 
Stock-based compensation — — — — 1,158 — 1,158 
Exercise of stock options — — 548 — 733 — 733 
Common stock repurchased (1,929) — — 
Conversion of promissory 
notes into Series A 
preferred stock, net 15,214 2 11,836 11,838 
Series A preferred stock 
issued, net 3,488 — — — 3,490 — 3,490 

18,702 $ 2 75,395 $ 8 $ 59,805 $ (57,746) $ 2,069 
Net loss — — — — — (12,024)  (12,024) 
Stock-based compensation — — — — 1,022 — 1,022 
Exercise of stock options — — 1,017 — 361 — 361 

18,702 $ 2 76,412 $ 8 $ 61,188 $ (69,770) $ (8,572) 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

5

Balance at December 31, 2020

Balance at December 31, 2021



LEAFLY HOLDINGS, INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020

Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss $ (12,024) $ (9,964) 
Adjustments:

Depreciation  253  312 
Stock-based compensation expense  1,022  1,158 
Bad debt expense  1,177  1,590 
Noncash lease costs  230  248 
Noncash interest expense associated with convertible debt  1,370  694 
Other  44  308 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable  (1,802)  (2,138) 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets  (283)  87 
Accounts payable  (397)  (3,327) 
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities  3,172  1,741 
Deferred revenue  390  (501) 

Net cash used in operating activities  (6,848)  (9,792) 

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment  (87)  (5) 
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment  —  20 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities  (87)  15 

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from exercise of stock options  334  97 
Proceeds from convertible promissory notes  31,470  4,624 
Proceeds from Series A preferred stock, net  —  3,490 
Proceeds from related party payables  —  645 
Transaction costs associated with recapitalization  (855)  — 
Payments on related party payables  (253)  — 

Net cash provided by financing activities  30,696  8,856 

Net increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash  23,761  (921) 
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, beginning of period  4,934  5,855 
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, end of period $ 28,695 $ 4,934 

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash financing activities
Transaction costs associated with recapitalization in accounts payable and accrued 
expenses $ 1,985 $ — 
Conversion of promissory notes into Series A preferred stock, net — $ 11,838 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(in thousands, except per share amounts and percentages)

NOTE 1 — Description of Organization and Business Operations

Leafly Holdings, Inc. (“Leafly” or “the Company”) operates an online cannabis information resource platform and was 
incorporated in the state of Washington on November 8, 2011. Leafly is headquartered in Seattle, Washington. 

The Company has two wholly owned subsidiaries, Leafly Canada Ltd. (“Leafly Canada”) and LMarket, LLC (“Leafly 
Market”). In April 2020, Leafly Market discontinued operations. The accompanying consolidated financial statements 
include the financial results of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries.

On February 4, 2022 (the “Closing Date”), the Company and Merida Merger Corp I (“Merida”) consummated the business 
combination pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of August 9, 2021 and amended on September 8, 
2021 and on January 11, 2022 (as amended, the “Merger Agreement”), by and among Merida, Merida Merger Sub, Inc., a 
Washington corporation (“Merger Sub I”), Merida Merger Sub II, LLC, a Washington limited liability company (“Merger 
Sub II” and, together with Merger Sub I, the “Merger Subs”), and Leafly Holdings, Inc., a Washington corporation 
(“Leafly”) (the “Business Combination”). The Business Combination resulted in the merger of a subsidiary of Merida into 
the Company, with the Company being the surviving entity and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Merida. All equity securities 
of the Company converted into the right to receive the applicable portion of merger consideration pursuant to the terms and 
subject to the conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement. The Business Combination is accounted for as a 
recapitalization of Leafly (see Note 19).

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America ("GAAP"). All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated upon 
consolidation. 

Reclassifications

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation. These reclassifications 
had no effect on the reported results of operations. 

Certain Risks and Uncertainties

In December 2019, a novel strain of coronavirus (“COVID-19”) was first identified, and in March 2020, the World Health 
Organization categorized COVID-19 as a pandemic. Measures taken by various governments to contain the virus have 
affected economic activity. The Company has taken measures to monitor and mitigate the effects of COVID-19, including 
safety and health measures for employees (such as social distancing and working from home).

There is significant uncertainty around the ongoing disruptions related to the COVID-19 pandemic and its impact on the 
global economy. The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic could have a significant adverse impact on the Company 
could be material and cannot be predicted with certainty. At this point, the Company cannot estimate the impact of the 
outbreak and no provision for this outbreak is reflected in the accompanying financial statements.

NOTE 2 — Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and reported 
amounts of revenue and expenses in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. On an ongoing basis, 
management evaluates its estimates, including those related to the allowance for doubtful accounts, the valuation allowance 
for deferred income tax assets, the fair value of the convertible promissory notes, and the fair value of equity issuances. 
Management bases its estimates on historical experience, knowledge of current events and actions it may undertake in the 
future that management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates 
and assumptions.
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Foreign Currency

The functional currency for the Company’s foreign subsidiaries is the U.S. dollar. The assets and liabilities of our foreign 
subsidiaries are remeasured to U.S. dollars at current or historic exchange rates, as appropriate. Revenues and expenses are 
remeasured to U.S. dollars using historic or average monthly exchange rates, as appropriate. Remeasurement gains and 
losses are included in other income (expense) on the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The assets, liabilities, 
revenues, and expenses of our foreign subsidiaries are individually less than 10% of our respective consolidated amounts. 
The Canadian dollar is our primary foreign currency. Remeasurement gains and losses have not been significant.

Foreign Operations

Operations outside the U.S. comprise Leafly Canada’s activities in Canada. Foreign operations are subject to risks inherent 
in operating under different legal systems and various political and economic environments. Among the risks are changes 
in existing tax laws, possible limitations on foreign investment and income repatriation, government price or foreign 
exchange controls, and restrictions on currency exchange. Net liabilities of our foreign subsidiaries were $3,932 and $4,388 
inclusive of intercompany payables to Leafly Holdings of $5,494 and $5,057 as of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 
2020, respectively.

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less at the time of 
purchase to be cash equivalents. The Company may hold cash balances that exceed the insured limits by the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation. Restricted cash as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 includes collateral held at the 
Company’s financial institution and its credit card processing company.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk consist of cash and cash 
equivalents, restricted cash and accounts receivable. The Company’s cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash are 
deposited with major financial institutions primarily in the U.S. and Canada. At times, deposits in financial institutions 
located in the U.S. may be in excess of the amount of insurance provided on such deposits by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation (FDIC). At December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, cash and cash equivalents of $1,210 and 
$581, held in foreign institutions, are not FDIC insured. To date, the Company has not experienced any losses on its cash 
deposits. 

Accounts receivable are unsecured and the Company generally does not require collateral from its customers. The 
Company evaluates the collectability of its accounts receivable and provides an allowance for potential credit losses as 
necessary.

Accounts Receivable, Net and Payment Terms 

The Company records accounts receivable at the time of invoicing the customer. Payment terms and conditions vary by 
contract type and the service being provided. Fees are usually non-refundable. Subscription-based services are typically 
invoiced monthly in advance and impression-based services are typically invoiced monthly in arrears. Customer payment 
terms vary by arrangement although payments are typically due within 30 days of invoicing. The timing between the 
satisfaction of the performance obligations and the payment is not significant and the Company currently does not have any 
significant financing components or significant payment terms.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts receivable. The allowance reflects the Company's best 
estimate of probable losses associated with the accounts receivable balance. It is based upon historical experience and loss 
patterns, the number of days that billings are past due, an evaluation of the potential risk of loss associated with delinquent 
accounts, and known delinquent accounts. When new information becomes available that allows the Company to estimate 
the allowance more accurately, it makes an adjustment, which is considered a change in accounting estimate. The carrying 
value of accounts receivable approximates their fair value due to its short-term nature.
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Deferred Transaction Costs

The Company has incurred significant costs direct and incremental to the Business Combination and therefore to the 
recapitalization of the Company. We have deferred these costs and will offset them against proceeds of the transaction 
upon completion of the mergers in the first quarter of 2022. 

Costs to Obtain Contracts with Customers 

Certain sales incentive compensation costs are incremental costs to obtain the related customer contract. For contract costs 
with amortization periods of more than 12 months, these costs are capitalized in the period in which they are incurred and 
amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected customer life of the associated contract. There were no capitalized 
costs to obtain contracts with customers in 2021 or 2020. For contract costs with amortization periods of less than 12 
months, the Company applies a practical expedient to expense such costs as incurred.

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment consists of furniture, equipment, and leasehold improvements and are stated at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives of the assets, generally three to five years. Amortization of leasehold improvements is computed using the 
straight-line method over the shorter of the remaining lease term or the estimated useful life of the improvements.

Leases

The Company categorizes leases with contractual terms longer than twelve months as either operating or finance. Finance 
leases are generally those leases that substantially utilize or pay for the entire asset over its estimated life. All other leases 
are categorized as operating leases. Costs associated with operating lease assets are recognized on a straight-line basis 
within operating expenses over the term of the lease.

Lease liabilities are recognized at the present value of the fixed lease payments, reduced by landlord incentives using an 
estimated discount rate based on similarly secured borrowings available to us. Lease assets are recognized based on the 
initial present value of the fixed lease payments, reduced by landlord incentives, plus any direct costs from executing the 
leases or lease prepayments.

The Company does not recognize its renewal options as part of its right-of-use assets and lease liabilities until it is 
reasonably certain that it will exercise such renewal options.

The Company does not combine lease and non-lease components; its lease agreements provide specific allocations of the 
Company’s obligations between lease and non-lease components. As a result, the Company is not required to exercise any 
judgment in determining such allocations. 

Operating lease right-of-use assets were $0 and $230 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and are included in 
prepaid expenses and other current assets.

Accounting for Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 

The Company reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets held and used is measured by comparison of 
the carrying amount of an asset to future net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. Any impairment to be 
recognized is measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. 
Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of their carrying cost or the fair value less the cost to sell.

Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

The Company generates revenue by providing customers with online software and advertising services, primarily through 
subscription agreements. Leafly also provides advertising on a per-impression delivered basis. 

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with ASC 606, the core principle of which is that an entity should 
recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the 
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled to receive in exchange for those goods or services. To achieve this 
core principle, five basic criteria must be met before revenue can be recognized: 
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• Identification of the contract, or contracts, with a customer;
• Identification of the performance obligations in the contract;
• Determination of the transaction price;
• Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and
• Recognition of revenue when, or as, the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

Leafly provides to its clients a platform to engage with and advertise to interested consumers. This subscription-based 
platform is delivered by way of a hosted, web-based application or Software as a Service (SaaS) delivery model.  
Customers of Leafly never take possession of any software as it is hosted in the cloud.

All the Company’s revenue and trade receivables are generated from contracts with customers. Revenue is recognized 
when control of the promised services is transferred to the Company's customers at an amount that reflects the 
consideration the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for those services. Customer arrangements are evidenced 
by written or electronic acceptance of a contract describing the services to be delivered, the timing, and the pricing. 

Performance Obligations - A performance obligation is a promise in a contract to transfer a distinct good or service to the 
customer and is the unit of account under Topic 606. The transaction price is allocated to each distinct performance 
obligation and is recognized as revenue when, or as, the performance obligation is satisfied by transferring the promised 
good or service to the customer. The Company identifies and tracks the performance obligations at contract inception so 
that the Company can monitor and account for the performance obligations over the life of the contract. The Company does 
not disclose the value of unsatisfied performance obligations for (i) contracts with an original expected length of one year 
or less and (ii) contracts for which the amount of revenue it recognizes is equal to the amount which the Company has a 
right to invoice.

The Company’s Retail contracts typically contain a single performance obligation consisting of the hosted software in a 
multi-tenant environment where support and maintenance are included for customers. Retail contracts with multiple 
performance obligations contain additional services offerings, either in the form of subscription or one-time service. 
Additional Retail service offerings change over time but currently include additional mapping, mobile, homepage, and 
video features, as well as sponsorships, premium placement, pick-up lead generation, insights, and customer 
communications, including emails and mobile push notifications. Brands customers can purchase any number and 
combination of services; none of the Brands services require the purchase of another Brands service.

For contracts with multiple performance obligations where the contracted price differs from the standalone selling price 
(SSP) for any distinct good or service, the Company may be required to allocate the transaction price to each performance 
obligation using its best estimate for the SSP. The portion of our revenue for which SSP requires estimation has been 
immaterial.

A majority of the customer contracts have performance obligations that the Company satisfies over time, and revenue is 
recognized by consistently applying a method of measuring progress toward satisfaction of that performance obligation.  
Some contracts contain a performance obligation that the Company satisfies at a point in time upon delivery of the 
specified services. Revenues recognized over time are associated with software subscriptions,  display ads and audience 
extension. Revenues recognized at a point in time are associated with branded content and channel advertising.

Practical Expedients and Exemptions - There are several practical expedients and exemptions allowed under Topic 606 that 
impact the timing of revenue recognition and the Company’s disclosures. Below is a list of practical expedients applied by 
the Company:

• The Company does not evaluate a contract for a significant financing component if payment is expected within 
one year or less from the transfer of the promised items to the customer.

• The Company generally expenses sales commissions when incurred when the amortization period would have 
been one year or less. These costs are recorded within sales and marketing expense in the consolidated statements 
of operations.

Contract Balances - The timing of revenue recognition may differ from the timing of invoicing to customers and these 
timing differences result in contract assets, or contract liabilities (deferred revenue) on the Company’s consolidated balance 
sheets. The Company mainly provides subscription services and bills its customers upfront for any services to be 
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performed. As such, the Company did not have any contracts assets as of, or during the year ended, December 31, 2021 or 
2020.

Contract Liabilities (Deferred Revenue) - The Company records Deferred Revenue when the Company has received or has 
the right to receive consideration but has not yet transferred goods or services to the customer. The Company typically 
invoices its customers for online software on a monthly, quarterly, or annual basis, with payment due 30 days from the date 
of the invoice. Unpaid invoice amounts for non-cancelable services starting in future periods are included in accounts 
receivable and deferred revenue. 

Cost of Revenue 

Cost of revenue consists primarily of credit card processing fees, third-party professional services, website infrastructure 
and hosting costs, and salaries and employee benefits for the engineering teams responsible for operating the Company’s 
online software platform.

Product Development 

Product development expenses primarily consist of consulting costs, and allocations of various overhead and occupancy 
costs, and salaries and employee benefits for the engineering teams responsible for developing new products or services or 
significant improvements to existing products or services. Product development costs that do not meet the criteria for 
capitalization are expensed as incurred.

Income Taxes 

The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method. Under this method, deferred income tax 
assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial 
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit 
carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates applicable to taxable income in the 
years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and 
liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. A valuation 
allowance is recorded against the Company’s deferred income tax assets if based on the weight of all available evidence, it 
is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The Company periodically reviews its 
operations and significant income tax positions for uncertainties and areas of judgment in the application of complex 
income tax regulations in several tax jurisdictions and provides a liability for potential income taxes, where applicable. The 
Company includes any interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits within the provision for taxes.

Advertising 

All advertising costs are expensed as incurred and included in sales and marketing expenses. Advertising expenses incurred 
by the Company were $2,076 and $194 and during 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation 

Stock-based compensation expense represents the cost of the grant date fair value of stock option grants, estimated in 
accordance with the applicable accounting guidance, recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. The 
vesting period generally approximates the expected service period of the awards. When awards include a performance 
condition that impacts the vesting or exercisability of the award, the Company records compensation cost when it becomes 
probable that the performance condition will be met and the service is provided. Compensation cost for awards with a 
performance condition are recognized over the shorter of the derived service period or the explicit/implicit service period. 
Compensation expense for awards subject to market-based conditions are recognized on a straight-line basis over the 
derived service period, regardless of whether the market condition is satisfied. Forfeitures are recognized and accounted for 
as they occur.

The fair value of stock options with service or performance conditions is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model, inclusive of assumptions for risk-free interest rates, expected dividends, expected terms, 
expected volatility, and the fair value of the underlying stock. The fair value of stock options with market conditions is 
estimated on the date of grant using a Monte Carlo simulation model, inclusive of assumptions for risk-free interest rates, 
expected terms, expected volatility, and the target price. Significant changes to the key assumptions underlying the factors 
used could result in different fair values of stock options at each valuation date, which could result in different stock-based 
compensation expense.
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The risk-free interest rates used are based on the U.S. Department of Treasury (U.S. Treasury) yield in effect at the time of 
grant for zero-coupon U.S. Treasury notes with maturities approximately equal to the expected term of the stock options. 
We base the assumed dividend yield on our expectation of not paying dividends in the foreseeable future. Options granted 
have a maximum contractual term of 10 years. The Company has limited historical stock option activity and therefore 
estimates the expected term of stock options granted using the simplified method, which represents the average of the 
contractual term of the stock option and its weighted-average vesting period. The expected volatility of stock options is 
based upon the historical volatility of a number of publicly traded companies in similar stages of development. The 
Company has historically not declared or paid any dividends and does not currently expect to do so in the foreseeable 
future. 

Common Stock Valuation

Due to the absence of an active market for the Company’s common stock, the Company utilized methodologies in 
accordance with the framework of Standards 9 and 10 of the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice, the 
Statement on Standards for Valuation Services as set forth by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
(“AICPA”), ASC Topic 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, and the AICPA Accounting and Valuation Guide 
for the Valuation of Privately-Held-Company Equity Securities Issued as Compensation, to estimate the fair value of its 
common stock. The fair value of the common stock has been determined based upon a variety of factors, including the 
illiquid nature of the common stock, sales of the Company’s preferred stock, the effect of the rights and preferences of the 
preferred stockholders, and the prospects of a liquidity event. Among other factors are the Company’s unaudited and 
audited historical financial position and performance and the current business climate in the marketplace. Significant 
changes to the key assumptions underlying the factors used could result in different fair values of common stock at each 
valuation date.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

Income Taxes - On December 18, 2019, the FASB issued ASU 2019-12, Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes 
(“Topic 740”), which is intended to simplify various aspects of accounting for income taxes. ASU 2019-12 removes certain 
exceptions to the general principles in Topic 740 and clarifies and amends existing guidance to improve consistent 
application. The amendments in ASU 2019-12 are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, 
beginning after December 15, 2020, with early adoption permitted. The Company adopted ASU 2019-12 on January 1, 
2021. The effect of the adoption of ASU 2019-12 was not material.

Debt with Conversion and Other Options - In August 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020-06, Debt with Conversion and 
other Options (Subtopic 470-20) and Derivatives and Hedging - Contracts in Entity's Own Equity (Subtopic 815-40): 
Accounting for Convertible Instruments and Contracts in an Entity's Own Equity. The ASU simplifies the accounting for 
certain convertible instruments by removing the separation models for convertible debt with a cash conversion feature or 
convertible instruments with a beneficial conversion feature. As a result, convertible debt instruments will be reported as a 
single liability instrument with no separate accounting for embedded conversion features. Additionally, the ASU amends 
the diluted earnings per share calculation for convertible instruments by requiring the use of the if-converted method. The 
treasury stock method is no longer available. The amendments in ASU 2020-06 are effective for fiscal years, and interim 
periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2021, with early adoption permitted. Adoption of the 
standard can either be on a modified retrospective or full retrospective basis.

The Company adopted ASU 2020-06 on January 1, 2021 using the full retrospective method. Accordingly, the Company 
has presented the consolidated financial statements as if this guidance had been effective during all periods presented. 
However, the adoption of the new guidance did impact the Company’s interest expense recognized during the year ended 
December 31, 2020, resulting in a decrease of $11,144. The cumulative effect of the adoption of the new guidance on the 
Company’s condensed consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2020 was a decrease in additional paid-in capital and 
accumulated deficit of $11,144.

Leases - In February 2016, the FASB issued ASC Topic 842, Leases. This standard requires all entities that lease assets 
with terms of more than 12 months to capitalize the assets and related liabilities on the balance sheet. The standard is 
effective for the Company as of January 1, 2021 but was early adopted as of January 1, 2020. 

The Company adopted and began applying ASC 842 on January 1, 2020 in accordance with Accounting Standards Update 
(ASU) No. 2018-11, Targeted Improvements to ASC 842, using a modified retrospective approach. Based on its lease 
portfolio in place at the time of adoption, the Company determined that a cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening 
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balance of accumulated deficit was not needed because there was no difference between the operating lease expense 
recorded to its condensed consolidated statement of operations following its adoption of ASC 842 and the amount that 
would have been recorded under ASC 840. The Company will continue to disclose comparative reporting periods prior to 
January 1, 2020 under ASC 840.

The Company elected to take most of the package of practical expedients permitted under the transition guidance within 
ASC 842, which allows an entity to not reassess 1) whether any expired or existing contracts contain leases, 2) the lease 
classification for any expired or existing leases, and 3) the treatment of initial direct costs for any existing leases. The 
Company did not elect the hindsight practical expedient to determine the lease terms for existing leases.

The Company recorded operating lease right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all of its leases that met the definition of 
a lease under ASC 842 and that are greater than twelve months in duration upon its adoption of ASC 842. The most 
significant changes as a result of adopting ASC 842 were the recognition of operating lease right-of-use assets of 
approximately $6,700 and operating lease liabilities of approximately $6,400 upon adoption on January 1, 2020. These 
balances are comprised of the Company's office lease portfolio. The Company de-recognized deferred rent liabilities 
associated with its office lease portfolio of $143 upon adoption.

Fair Value Disclosure - In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-13, Disclosure Framework—Changes to the 
Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement, which amended ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement. ASU 2018-13 
modified the disclosure requirements for fair value measurements by removing, modifying, and adding certain disclosures. 
The Company adopted ASU 2018-13 on January 1, 2020, and the adoption did not have a material impact on its 
consolidated financial statements.

Cloud Computing - In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-15, Intangibles—Goodwill and Other—Internal-Use 
Software (Subtopic 350-40): Customer’s Accounting for Implementation Costs Incurred in a Cloud Computing 
Arrangement That Is a Service Contract. These amendments align the requirements for capitalizing implementation costs 
incurred in a hosting arrangement that is a service contract with the requirements for capitalizing implementation costs 
incurred to develop or obtain internal-use software (and hosting arrangements that include an internal-use software license). 
The accounting for the service element of a hosting arrangement that is a service contract is not affected by these 
amendments. The Company capitalizes implementation costs associated with cloud computing arrangements as a prepaid 
expense and amortizes the costs to operating expense. The Company adopted ASU 2018-15 prospectively on January 1, 
2020. The effect of the adoption of ASU 2018-15 was not material.

NOTE 3 — Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash

Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash consist of the following:

December 31,
2021

December 31,
2020

Cash and cash equivalents $ 28,565 $ 4,818 
Restricted cash  130  116 

$ 28,695 $ 4,934 

NOTE 4 — Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

Prepaid expenses and other current assets consist of the following:

December 31,
2021

December 31,
2020

Prepaid expenses $ 1,191 $ 734 
Operating lease right-of-use assets  —  230 
Receivable - Privateer Management (see also Note 13)  —  263 
Other current assets  156  381 

$ 1,347 $ 1,608 
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NOTE 5 —Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment consist of the following:

December 31,
2021

December 31,
2020

Furniture and equipment $ 1,049 $ 1,062 
Leasehold improvements  2  23 

 1,051  1,085 
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization  (738)  (562) 

$ 313 $ 523 

The Company recognized depreciation expense of $253 and $312 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, 
respectively.

NOTE 6 — Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

Accrued expenses consist of the following:

December 31,
2021

December 31,
2020

Accrued bonuses $ 3,668 $ 1,387 
Other employee-related liabilities  2,131 $ 1,418 
Accrued interest  1,313  — 
Lease liability  —  183 
Other accrued expenses1  1,213  577 

$ 8,325 $ 3,565 
1 There are no individual items within this balance that exceed 10% of the total of the table.

Accrued bonuses include those for executive officers of the Company. Historically, bonuses have been provided to 
executives on a discretionary basis. Bonus compensation is designed to hold executives accountable and reward them for 
personal and business performance. The Company offers an annual incentive program for its executive officers whereby 
they are eligible to receive target bonus payouts, of up to 50% for the CEO and 40% for other named executive officers, of 
their base salary, with the actual bonus awarded based on a number of factors, including each executive’s personal 
performance, Leafly’s performance, current market and business climate, and Leafly’s financial circumstances, as 
determined by the Leafly board of directors. 

NOTE 7 — Commitments and Contingencies

In the normal course of business, the Company may receive inquiries or become involved in legal disputes regarding 
various litigation matters. In the opinion of management, any potential liabilities resulting from such claims would not have 
a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 8 — Revenue and Contract Balances

The following table presents revenue by service type for the year ended December 31:

2021 2020
Advertising $ 42,580 $ 36,036 
Other services  456  356 

$ 43,036 $ 36,392 

The following table presents revenue by geographic region for the year ended December 31:

2021 2020
United States $ 39,366 $ 33,328 
All other countries  3,670  3,064 

$ 43,036 $ 36,392 
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The following table presents revenue by timing of recognition for the year ended December 31:

2021 2020
Over time
Retail1 $ 33,628 $ 29,591 
Brands2  5,904  4,677 

$ 39,532 $ 34,268 
Point in time
Brands3  3,504  2,124 

$ 43,036 $ 36,392 
1 Revenues from subscription services and display ads
2 Revenues from brand profile subscriptions and digital media (including display ads and audience extension)
3 Revenues from branded content and channel advertising (including direct to consumer email)

Revenues recognized over time are associated with software subscriptions, display ads and audience extension. Revenues 
recognized at a point in time are associated with branded content and channel advertising. There are no material variations 
in delivery and revenue recognition periods within the over time category. 

During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, no individual customers accounted for 10% or more of consolidated 
revenue. As of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, one customer accounted for 12% of accounts receivable and 
no individual customer accounted for 10% or more of accounts receivable, respectively

The allowance for doubtful accounts as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the changes in the allowance for doubtful 
accounts during the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, are as follows:

2021 2020
Balance, beginning of period $ 1,131 $ 614 
Add: provision for doubtful accounts  1,177  1,590 
Less: write-offs $ (460) $ (1,073) 
Balance, end of period $ 1,848 $ 1,131 

Contract liabilities consist of deferred revenue, which is recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets when the Company 
has received consideration, or has the right to receive consideration, in advance of transferring the performance obligations 
under the contract to the customer.

Deferred revenue as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the changes in deferred revenue during the years ended 
December 31, 2021 and 2020, were as follows:

2021 2020
Balance, beginning of period $ 1,585 $ 2,086 
Add: net increase in current period contract liabilities  1,936  1,585 
Less: revenue recognized from beginning balance  (1,546)  (2,086) 
Balance, end of period $ 1,975 $ 1,585 

A majority of the deferred revenue balance as of December 31, 2021 is expected to be recognized in the subsequent 12-
month period. No other contract assets or liabilities are recorded on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets as of 
December 31, 2021 or 2020.

NOTE 9 — Income Taxes

The Company’s effective tax rate was 0% for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020. The effective tax rate was 
lower than the U.S. federal statutory rate primarily due to the Company’s valuation allowance recorded against its deferred 
tax assets.

The Company has not identified any unrecognized tax benefits or uncertain tax positions. No liability is recorded on the 
financial statements and no accrual for interest and penalties was required as of December 31, 2021.  The Company does 
not expect any material changes related to uncertain tax positions during the next 12 months.
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The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various U.S. state and foreign jurisdictions. In 
the normal course of business, the Company is subject to examination by taxing authorities throughout the world. All tax 
years remain open to examination by major taxing jurisdictions to which the Company is subject to.

The components of net loss before income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 consisted of the 
following:

2021 2020
United States $ (12,142) $ (9,687) 
Foreign  118  (277) 

$ (12,024) $ (9,964) 

The provision for income taxes differs from the amount estimated by applying the statutory federal income tax rate to net 
loss before taxes as follows: 

2021 2020
Federal tax benefit at statutory rate $ (2,525) $ (2,093) 
State income tax benefit at statutory rate, net of federal benefit  (359)  (316) 
Permanent differences  282  197 
Change in valuation allowance  2,626  2,206 
Deferred adjustments  6  595 
Net operating loss carryback – CARES Act  —  (685) 
Other adjustments, net  (30)  96 

Provision for income taxes $ — $ — 

The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities consist of the following: 

2021 2020
Deferred tax assets

Net operating loss carryforwards – domestic $ 12,610 $ 9,895 
Net operating loss carryforwards – foreign  1,220  1,252 
Intangible assets  12,426  13,576 
Accruals  1,398  659 
Interest limitation  324  — 
Other  60  118 

Total deferred tax assets $ 28,038 $ (25,500) 
Valuation allowance  (28,027)  (25,401) 

Total deferred tax assets, net of allowance $ 11 $ 99 
Deferred tax liabilities

Other $ (11) $ (99) 
Total deferred tax liabilities $ (11) $ (99) 

Total deferred tax assets, net $ — $ — 

The Company has recorded a full valuation allowance against its net deferred tax assets due to the uncertainty as to whether 
such assets will be realized. The valuation allowance increased primarily due to the generation of current year net operating 
losses.

As of December 31, 2021, the Company had $52,952 of U.S. federal, $35,976 of state, and $4,303 of foreign net operating 
losses available to offset future taxable income. The state net operating loss carryforwards will begin to expire in 2039, if 
not utilized.  The federal net operating losses can be carried forward indefinitely and will not expire.  In addition, the use of 
net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards may be limited under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code in certain 
situations where changes occur in the stock ownership of a company.  In the event that the Company has had a change in 
ownership, utilization of the carryforwards could be restricted.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various state and foreign jurisdictions. 
Management believes all the income tax returns filed since inception remain open to examination by the major domestic 
and foreign taxing jurisdictions to which the Company is subject due net operating loss carry forwards.
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The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (“CARES”) Act was enacted March 27, 2020.  Among the business 
provisions, the CARES Act provided for various payroll tax incentives, changes to net operating loss carryback and 
carryforward rules, business interest expense limitation increases, and bonus depreciation on qualified improvement 
property.  Additionally, the Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2021 was signed on December 27, 2020, which provided 
additional COVID relief provisions for businesses. The Company has evaluated the impact of both Acts and has 
determined that any impact is not material to its financial statements.

As of December 31, 2021, the Company asserts to indefinitely reinvest undistributed earnings to ensure sufficient working 
capital and further expansion of existing operations outside the U.S. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company’s 
foreign subsidiaries operated at a cumulative deficit for U.S. earnings and profit purposes. In the event the Company is 
required to repatriate funds from outside of the U.S., such repatriation would be subject to local laws, customs, and tax 
consequences. Determination of the amount of unrecognized deferred tax liability related to these earnings is not 
practicable.

NOTE 10 — Convertible Promissory Notes

2021 Notes

In June 2021, the Company issued a series of convertible promissory notes (collectively, the 2021 Notes) totaling 
approximately $23,970. The 2021 Notes bear interest at 8% annually. The 2021 Notes are considered traditional 
convertible debt with the entire amount recognized as a liability (with no amount allocated to equity), reduced for direct 
issuance costs, with initial and subsequent recognition at amortized cost in accordance with the interest method described 
in Subtopic 835-30. Unless converted, the entire balance of principal and accrued but unpaid interest is due on December 3, 
2022. The 2021 Notes are contingently convertible upon the occurrence of certain events. The 2021 Notes convert at a 
discount to the equity securities purchased by investors in a qualified financing of not less than $25,000, a financing other 
than a qualified financing (non-qualified financing), or in a qualified public transaction (initial public offering, direct 
listing, or acquisition transaction with a publicly-listed special purpose acquisition company or its subsidiary). If a qualified 
financing occurs on or prior to the maturity date, the 2021 Notes will automatically convert to fully-paid non-accessible 
shares of the preferred stock issued in such qualified financing (the “next round shares”) at the financing conversion price. 
If a non-qualified financing occurs on or prior to the maturity date, note holders acting as a group at the election of holder 
majority, may elect to convert all or any portion (on a pro-rata basis) of the outstanding amount into fully-paid non-
accessible next round shares at the financing conversion price. If a qualified public transaction occurs on or prior to the 
maturity date, then immediately upon the consummation of such transaction the outstanding amount of each holder’s note 
shall automatically convert into shares of the common stock at the public transaction conversion price. The financing 
conversion price is the per share price equal to 80% of the lowest price per share paid by purchasers of the next round 
shares, who are purchasing such shares with cash (and not, for example, by conversion of notes or cancellations of 
indebtedness). The public transaction conversion price is (i) for an initial public offering (IPO), 80% of the price to the 
public in the qualified IPO, (ii) if the conversion is connected to a qualified direct listing, 80% of the initial sale price to the 
public in the direct listing, and (iii) if the conversion is in connection with a qualified SPAC transaction, 80% of the 
implied price per share of common stock in the qualified SPAC transaction. An accelerated maturity of the 2021 Notes will 
be triggered by a company sale. If the sale occurs prior to the maturity date, the Company at the election of the holder may 
(i) repay the entire outstanding amount of the 2021 Notes in full or (ii) convert the same entire outstanding amount into 
shares of the Company’s most senior series of the preferred stock (or into that number of shares of common stock into 
which such preferred stock would be convertible) at a price per share equal to 80% of the implied price per share of 
common stock in the company sale. Subject to applicable terms specified in the note, the outstanding amount will be 
immediately and unconditionally due and payable on the maturity date, or upon default, the note shall accelerate and 
become immediately due and payable. The Company’s payment obligations under the 2021 Notes are unsecured. 

In August 2021, the Company issued additional convertible promissory notes totaling $7,500 to Merida Capital, an affiliate 
of Merida. As of December 31, 2021, the cumulative amount raised through the 2021 Notes is $31,470, and the cumulative 
amount held by Merida is $15,000. These notes are subject to the same interest rate, maturity, and conversion terms of the 
existing series of 2021 Notes; however, they are subject to unique repayment terms under certain conditions. If the 
transactions contemplated by the merger agreement are not completed on or prior to May 16, 2022 other than as a result of 
market conditions, the failure to receive any required approvals or any events, circumstances or actions outside of the 
control of Leafly or Merida, Merida may request repayment of all $15,000 outstanding convertible promissory notes held 
by them plus accrued interest. If the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement do not close by such date as a 
result of any of the foregoing reasons, Merida can request repayment of all outstanding convertible promissory notes plus 
accrued interest held by them on November 16, 2022.
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Notwithstanding, conversion options discussed herein, the Company may not prepay the amount due in whole or in part 
without the written consent of the lead investor. As of December 31, 2021, the net carrying amount of the 2021 Notes was 
$31,377, which includes unamortized issuance costs of $93. The estimated fair value of the convertible debt instruments 
was $33,490 as of December 31, 2021. The fair value was measured using an income approach, which is Level 2 in the fair 
value hierarchy. 

On February 4, 2022, in connection with the merger of Merida and Leafly, the 2021 Notes converted to approximately 12.6 
million shares of Leafy common stock at the financing conversion price of approximately $2.63, which was 80% of the 
implied price per share of common stock in the Business Combination. Upon closing of the Business Combination, the 
shares of common stock then converted to shares of common stock of the combined company using the conversion ratio of 
0.3283, which was used for conversion of all Leafy securities. Additional convertible notes were issued in 2022 in 
connection with the Business Combination (see Note 19).

2019 Notes

In 2020 and 2019, the Company issued a series of similar convertible promissory notes (collectively, the 2019 Notes) 
totaling $4,650 and $6,520, respectively. The 2019 Notes bear interest at 8% annually and were due two years from the 
issuance date. The 2019 Notes were convertible into shares of preferred stock issued in a qualified financing with a 
minimum amount of $30,000. If a qualified financing did not occur before September 30, 2020, the holders of a majority of 
the outstanding 2019 Notes could elect to convert the series of 2019 Notes into shares of the Company’s existing equity 
securities at their discretion. If neither a qualified financing occurred nor the holders of a majority of the outstanding 2019 
Notes elected to convert, then individual holders could elect to convert their individual notes or accelerate the repayment of 
the outstanding principal plus any interest payable as if the note is being held to the maturity date. The 2019 Notes were 
convertible into shares of the Company’s existing equity securities, or preferred stock if sold to investors in the next 
financing. The conversion price was equal to 75% of the lesser of (a) the price per share paid by investors in the next 
financing round or (b) the quotient obtained by dividing $300,000 by the total number of shares outstanding on a fully 
diluted basis.

A qualified financing did not occur prior to September 30, 2020, and the holders of a majority of the 2019 Notes elected to 
convert the entire series of 2019 Notes to Series A preferred stock at a conversion price of $0.78. The entire series of 
outstanding 2019 Notes with an aggregate principal balance of $11,170 and accrued interest of $693 converted into 15,214 
shares of Series A preferred stock on September 30, 2020 (see Note 11). 

NOTE 11 — Stockholders’ Equity

Convertible Series A Preferred Stock

During the second quarter of 2020, the Company issued 3,488 shares of Series A preferred stock (“Series A”) in exchange 
for gross proceeds of $3,650, less issuance costs of $160. During the third quarter of 2020, the Company issued 15,214 
shares of Series A in exchange for the conversion of outstanding promissory notes of $11,170 and accrued interest of $693, 
less issuance costs of $25 (see Note 10).

The rights, preferences, privileges, and restrictions for holders of Series A are as follows:

Dividends - The holders of Series A are entitled to receive non-cumulative dividends. Dividends are payable when and if 
declared by the Board of Directors.

Voting - The holders of Series A are entitled to voting rights equal to the number of shares of Class 2 common stock into 
which each share of Series A could be converted and shall vote together with the holders of common stock as a single class 
and on an as-converted to common stock basis.

Liquidation - In the event of any liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of the Company, either voluntary or involuntary, 
the holders of Series A shall be entitled to receive, prior and in preference to any distribution of any of the assets of the 
Company to holders of common stock, the original issue price ($1.0392 per share), plus any declared but unpaid dividends. 
As of December 31, 2021, the aggregate liquidation preference is $19,436. If, upon the occurrence of such event, the assets 
and funds to be distributed among the holders of Series A are insufficient to permit the above payment to such holders, 
then the entire assets and funds of the Company legally available for distribution shall be distributed ratably among the 
holders of the Series A in proportion to the preferential amount each such holder would otherwise be entitled to receive. 

Upon the completion of the distribution to the holders of Series A, all remaining assets, if any, shall be distributed ratably 
to the holders of common stock pro rata based on the number of shares of common stock held by each such holder.
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Conversion - Shares of Series A are convertible at any time at the option of the holder into such number of fully paid and 
non-assessable shares of Class 2 common stock as is determined by dividing the Series A original issue price ($1.0392 per 
share) by the Series A conversion price (initially $1.0392, subject to adjustment) in effect at the time of the conversion. All 
outstanding shares of Series A shall automatically be converted into shares of Class 2 common stock at the then effective 
conversion rate upon either (a) the closing of the sale of shares of Class 2 common stock to the public in a firm-
commitment underwritten public offering pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act or (b) the 
date and time specified by the vote or written consent of the holders of a majority of the then outstanding shares of Series 
A.

Redemption - Series A is not redeemable at the option of the holder.

Common Stock

A summary of common stock is as follows as of December 31:

2021 2020
Par Value Voting Rights Authorized Outstanding Authorized Outstanding

Class 1 common stock $ 0.0001 10 votes per share  74,500  28,564  74,500  28,564 
Class 2 common stock $ 0.0001 1 vote per share  119,000  41,892  119,000  41,892 
Class 3 common stock $ 0.0001 no voting rights  17,751  5,956  16,151  4,939 

 211,251  76,412  209,651  75,395 

In the event of any liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of the Company, either voluntary or involuntary, the holders of 
each class of common stock shall be treated equally, identically and ratably, on a per share basis, with respect to any 
consideration into which such shares are converted or any consideration paid or otherwise distributed to stockholders of the 
Corporation.  

Shares of Class 1 common stock are convertible, one-for-one, into shares of Class 2 common stock at any time at the 
option of the holder. Each share of Class 1 common stock automatically converts into one fully paid and nonassessable 
share of Class 2 common stock immediately upon a transfer, other than a permitted transfer as defined, of such share of 
Class 1 common stock. Each share of Class 1 and Class 3 common stock automatically converts into one fully paid and 
nonassessable share of Class 2 common stock immediately upon the closing of an underwritten public offering of common 
stock under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, on or after the first day in which the Securities Exchange is open for 
trading on which the outstanding shares of Class 1 common stock represent less than 10% of the aggregate number of 
shares of the then outstanding Class 1 common stock and Class 2 common stock. 

Common Stock Reserved for Future Issuance

As of December 31, 2021, the Company had reserved shares of Class 2 common stock for future issuance in connection 
with the following:

Number of 
Shares

Stock options outstanding  11,729 
Stock options available for future grants  67 
Class 1 common stock  28,564 
Class 3 common stock  5,956 

 46,316 

Upon closing of the Business Combination, all outstanding stock options and stock converted to shares of common stock of 
the combined company using the conversion ratio of 0.3283 (see Note 19).

NOTE 12 — Equity Incentive Plans
We currently maintain the Leafly Holdings, Inc. 2018 Equity Incentive Plan (“2018 Leafly Plan”), which became effective 
on April 17, 2018. The 2018 Leafly Plan terminated upon closing of the Business Combination in 2022 (see Note 19) but 
then outstanding options under the 2018 Leafly Plan remain outstanding pursuant to their terms, with adjustments to the 
number of shares and exercise prices to reflect the terms of the Business Combination. The material terms of the 2018 Plan 
are:
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• An aggregate of  3,000 shares of stock, subsequently increased to 17,751 shares of stock, were reserved for 
issuance pursuant to awards granted under the 2018 Plan.

• Our board of directors administers the 2018 Leafly Plan and may delegate certain of its duties and 
responsibilities to a committee of the board, and, to the extent permitted under the applicable law and the 
2018 Leafly Plan, officers of the Company. 

• Awards under the 2018 Leafly Plan may be granted to employees, directors, and consultants of the Company 
and its subsidiaries. 

• In the event of a merger or other consolidation relating to the Company or the sale of all or substantially all of 
the Company’s stock or assets, all then-outstanding equity awards will be treated as set forth in the agreement 
governing such transaction.

• With limited exceptions, awards under the 2018 Leafly Plan are generally non-transferable prior to vesting 
unless otherwise determined by the plan administrator and are exercisable only by the participant during his 
or her lifetime.

As of December 31, 2021, the 2018 Leafly Plan has authorized a maximum of 17,751 shares of Class 3 common stock for 
issuance. 

The following weighted-average assumptions were used in the Black-Scholes option pricing model for the years ended 
December 31:

2021 2020
Risk-free interest rate 1.15% 0.63%
Expected term in years 5.9 5.5
Expected volatility 61% 58%
Expected dividend yield 0% 0%

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of options with service and performance conditions granted under the 2018 
Leafly Plan was $0.37 and $0.30 per share for years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The weighted-
average grant-date fair value of options with market conditions was $1.28 for the year ended December 31, 2021. There 
were no options with market conditions granted during the year ended December 31, 2020.

In October 2021, the Company granted stock options to purchase 300,000 shares of the Company's Class 3 common stock 
at an exercise price of $2.71. These options will vest only if Leafly's gross revenue equals or exceeds certain thresholds for 
the years ending December 31, 2022 and 2023. The total fair value of these options was $462, estimated using the Black-
Scholes options pricing model and the assumptions above.

In October 2021, the Company also granted stock options to purchase an additional 150,000 shares of the Company's Class 
3 common stock at an exercise price of $2.71. These options will vest only if the price of the Company's Class 3 common 
stock reaches a $1 billion market capitalization target for a period of 20 consecutive trading days on or before the fourth 
anniversary of the closing of the Business Combination (see Note 19). The total fair value of these options was $193, 
estimated using a Monte-Carlo simulation model. The assumptions used to value the awards are a risk-free interest rate of 
0.96%, an expected term of 6.1 years, expected volatility of 68%, and expected dividend yield of 0%.
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Stock option activity under the 2018 Leafly Plan was as follows:

Number of 
Shares

Weighted Average 
Exercise Price

Aggregate 
Intrinsic Value

Weighted 
Average 

Remaining 
Contractual 

Term 
(in years)

Outstanding at December 31, 2020  5,765  0.33 
Granted  7,818  0.70 
Exercised  (1,017)  0.35 
Forfeited or expired  (837)  0.37 

Outstanding at December 31, 2021  11,729 $ 0.58 $ 24,018 8.85

Vested and exercisable  4,203 $ 0.33 $ 10,019 8.23

During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the total intrinsic value of exercised stock options was 
approximately $1,600 and $280, respectively. The total fair value of shares vested during the years ended December 31, 
2021 and 2020, was approximately $915 and $770, respectively.

As of December 31, 2021, there was $2,857 of unrecognized compensation cost which is expected to be recognized over a 
weighted-average service period of approximately 0.97 years. In addition, there was $364 of unrecognized compensation 
cost associated with certain stock options granted to our CEO, which vested upon closing of the Business Combination in 
February 2022. Please see Note 19 for further discussion of the terms of these awards. 

2020 Stock Option Repricing

During 2020, the Board of Directors approved a stock option repricing program whereby certain previously granted and 
unexercised options held by current employees with exercise prices above $0.36 per share were repriced on a one-for-one 
basis to $0.36 per share which represented the per share fair market value of the Company’s common stock as of the date 
of the repricing. The vesting terms of certain options were also modified from a liquidity-based performance condition to a 
time-based service condition. There was no other modification to the vesting schedule of the previously issued options. As 
a result, 1,979 unexercised options originally granted to purchase common stock at prices ranging from $0.77 to $1.58 per 
share were repriced under this program. The Company treated the repricing as a modification of the original awards and 
calculated additional compensation costs for the difference between the fair value of the modified award and the fair value 
of the original award on the modification date. The repricing resulted in incremental stock-based compensation cost of 
$220. Expense related to vested shares was expensed on the repricing date and expense related to unvested shares is being 
amortized over the remaining vesting period of such stock options.

Early Exercised Options

Prior to the close of the Business Combination, the Company allowed certain employees to “early exercise” unvested stock 
options. Upon early exercise, an employee was deemed to own restricted stock for income tax purposes, which then 
continued to vest under the award’s original terms. Consequently, the restricted stock received upon exercise was subject to 
a lapsing repurchase right by the Company for any unvested shares upon an employee’s termination of service with the 
Company. Such an exercise is not substantive for accounting purposes and the award continues to be accounted for as a 
stock option. The short-term liability and long-term liability associated with cash received from the early exercise of 
unvested options is included in other current liabilities and other liabilities, respectively, on the Consolidated Balance 
Sheets.

A summary of early exercise activity is as follows:
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Unvested at December 31, 2019  1,015 $ 0.65 $ 663 
Vested  (516)  0.54  (279) 
Forfeited or expired  (464) $ 0.77 $ (357) 

Unvested at December 31, 2020  35 $ 0.77 $ 27 
Vested  (35) $ 0.77 $ (27) 

Unvested at December 31, 2021  — $ — $ — 

Number of 
Shares

Weighted Average 
Exercise Price Other Liabilities

Following the Business Combination, new equity awards will be granted under the New Leafly 2021 Equity Incentive Plan 
and 2021 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (see Note 19).

NOTE 13 — Related Party Transactions

Officer Note

In March 2019, the Company issued a recourse promissory note (the “Officer Note”) in the amount of $1,024 to John T. 
Leslie, who was an officer of the Company. The Officer Note bore interest at 2.55%, compounded annually, and was 
secured by 1,330 shares of common stock. 

Although this Officer Note was recourse to the individual, it was accounted for as nonrecourse since the recourse provision 
was not substantive. Accordingly, we accounted for the combination of the promissory note and restricted stock as a grant 
of an option, as the substance was similar to the grant of an option. The exercise price of this stock option was the principal 
and interest due on the promissory note. The fair value of the stock option was recognized over the requisite service period 
(not the term of the promissory note) through a charge to compensation cost. The maturity date of the Officer Note 
reflected the legal term of the stock option for purposes of valuing the award.

In August 2020, in connection with Mr. Leslie’s separation, the Company cancelled the Officer Note and associated 
accrued interest in exchange for the repurchase of 1,505 unvested shares and 424 vested shares, with an original exercise 
price of $0.77, at a price of $0.55 per share. 

Privateer Holdings and Privateer Management

Leafly was a wholly owned subsidiary of Privateer Holdings, Inc. until February 14, 2019, when Privateer Holdings 
effected a capital restructuring of Leafly and distributed its ownership in Leafly to its stockholders. In 2019, Leafly entered 
into a Corporate Services Agreement, as amended, with Ten Eleven Management LLC dba Privateer Management. Two 
individuals on Leafly’s board of directors as of December 31, 2021, Michael Blue and Christian Groh, are officers of 
Privateer Management, which has therefore been identified as a related party. Privateer Management provided managerial 
services, support services, administrative services, at times paid for employee health benefit and other expenses on behalf 
of the Company, and at times the Company paid for employee health and benefit expenses on behalf of Privateer Holdings, 
through March 31, 2021. During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company recorded $0 and $1,205, 
respectively, for these expenses within general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. 
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company reported receivables of $0 and $263, respectively for employee health 
and benefits paid on behalf of Privateer Holdings. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company owed $0 and $580, 
respectively, to Privateer Management for corporate services and expenses paid on its behalf in 2020 and prior. 

Other

One of Leafly’s significant investors, Brendan Kennedy, is a member of the board of directors of Tilray, Inc., which is the 
parent company of High Park Holdings Ltd., a customer of Leafly, and has therefore been identified as a related party. 
During years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company recorded approximately $142 and $239, respectively, of 
revenue earned from contracts with this customer.

In June 2021, Mr. Kennedy purchased a convertible promissory note totaling $1,000. The note was issued as part of the 
existing series of 2021 Notes (see Note 10) and is subject to the same interest rate, maturity, and conversion terms.

NOTE 14 – Defined Contribution Plan

The Company recognized expense from matching contributions to the Company-sponsored defined contribution retirement 
plan of $712 and $616 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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NOTE 15 – Leases

The Company leases its facilities under non-cancelable operating leases, which expire at various dates through February 
2022. Under the terms of the agreements, the Company is responsible for certain insurance and maintenance expenses. The 
Company records rent expense on a straight-line basis over the terms of the underlying leases. The difference between cash 
payments required and rent expense is recorded as amortization against outstanding lease liabilities and right of use assets. 
The Company's leases and subleases do not include any variable lease payments, residual value guarantees, related-party 
leases, or restrictions or covenants that would limit or prevent the Company from exercising its right to obtain substantially 
all of the economic benefits from use of the respective assets during the lease term.

In May 2020, the Company amended an office lease for its headquarters in Seattle to reduce the square feet and the 
monthly payment to $75 per month effective August 1, 2020 and terminated the lease on March 31, 2021. 

Operating lease cost for the year ended December 31, 2021 was $389. During the year ended December 31, 2020, the 
Company recognized rent expense of $1,582 on a straight-line basis over the lease period under the previous lease 
accounting standard. Operating cash flows used by operating leases for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 were 
$225 and $1,282, respectively. The weighted-average remaining lease term was 0.25 years and the weighted-average 
discount rate was 8% as of December 31, 2020. Future lease payments were immaterial as of December 31, 2021.

NOTE 16 — Restructuring Charges

During the year ended December 31, 2020, in response to COVID-19 and the associated potential impact on the 
Company’s business, certain employees were terminated, and the Company recorded $550 of pre-tax severance expense of 
which $232 is within sales and marketing expenses, $162 is within product development expenses, and $156 is within 
general and administrative expenses in our Consolidated Statements of Operations. Accrued severance expense was paid 
out prior to the end of each quarter during which the Company recorded the associated expense.

NOTE 17 — Net Loss Per Share

Basic and diluted net loss per share attributable to common stockholders is presented in conformity with the two-class 
method required for participating securities. The Company considers its preferred stock to be participating securities. Net 
loss is attributed to common stockholders and participating securities based on their participation rights. Net loss is not 
attributed to the preferred stock as the holders of the preferred stock do not have a contractual obligation to share in any 
losses.

Under the two-class method, basic net loss per share attributable to common stockholders is computed by dividing the net 
loss attributable to common stockholders by the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding during 
the period.

Diluted earnings per share attributable to common stockholders adjusts basic earnings per share for the potentially dilutive 
impact of stock options, preferred stock, and convertible notes. As the Company has reported losses for all periods 
presented, all potentially dilutive securities are antidilutive and accordingly, basic net loss per share equals diluted net loss 
per share.
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The following table presents the computation of basic and diluted net loss per share attributable to common stockholders, 
as a group, for the periods presented:

Years Ended 
December 31,

2021 2020
Net loss (numerator) $ (12,024) $ (9,964) 
Weighted average shares outstanding (denominator)  75,791  76,431 
Basic and diluted net loss per share $ (0.16) $ (0.13) 

The Company had three classes of common stock outstanding during the periods presented. Following are the calculations 
of basic and diluted net loss per share for each class of common stock:

Year Ended 
December 31, 2021

Class 1 Class 2 Class 3
Net loss (numerator) $ (4,532) $ (6,646) $ (846) 
Weighted average shares outstanding (denominator)  28,564  41,892  5,335 
Basic and diluted net loss per share $ (0.16) $ (0.16) $ (0.16) 

Year Ended December 31, 2020
Class 1 Class 2 Class 3

Net loss (numerator) $ (3,725) $ (5,460) $ (779) 
Weighted average shares outstanding (denominator)  28,570  41,886  5,975 
Basic and diluted net loss per share $ (0.13) $ (0.13) $ (0.13) 

The following shares of common stock subject to outstanding options, convertible notes, and convertible preferred stock 
were excluded from the computation of diluted net income per share attributable to common stockholders for the periods 
presented as their effect would have been antidilutive:

Years Ended
December 31,

2021 2020
Shares subject to outstanding common stock options  11,729  6 
Shares subject to convertible promissory notes  39,433  — 
Series A preferred stock  18,702  18,702 

 69,864  18,708 

See Note 10 for additional information regarding convertible promissory notes. See Note 11 for additional information 
regarding the terms of the preferred stock. See Note 12 for additional information regarding stock options.

NOTE 18 — Segment Reporting

Operating segments are components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is available for evaluation by 
the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) in making decisions regarding the allocation of resources and assessing 
performance. The Company has determined that its Chief Executive Officer is the CODM. Segment gross profit is the 
segment measure of profit or loss used to assess segment performance. The Company operates its business and reports its 
financial performance using two segments: Retail and Brands, which are groupings of service offerings, as described 
below.

Retail comprises offerings that allow the Company’s customers to engage in commerce with their customers, in addition to 
the Brands advertising and marketing offerings. 

Brands comprises offerings that allow the Company’s customers to advertise and market to their customers. These 
offerings include advertising and marketing through directory listing, direct emails, and mobile push notifications, for 
example. Brands offerings do not include commerce functionality. 

24



Segment revenue and gross profit were as follows during the periods presented:

Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020

Revenue:
Retail $ 33,628  29,591 
Brands  9,408  6,801 

Total revenue $ 43,036 $ 36,392 
Gross profit:

Retail  30,435  26,290 
Brands  7,618  5,140 

Total gross profit $ 38,053 $ 31,430 

Assets are not allocated to segments for internal reporting presentations, nor are depreciation and amortization.

Geographic Areas

The Company’s operations are primarily in the U.S. and to a lesser extent, in certain other countries. Refer to Note 8 for 
revenue classified by major geographic area.

NOTE 19 — Subsequent Events

Business Combination

On February 4, 2022, Leafly consummated the business combination pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated  
August 9, 2021 and amended on September 8, 2021 and on January 11, 2022 (as amended, the “Merger Agreement”). 
Leafly entered into the Merger Agreement with Merida, Merger Sub I and Merger Sub II. Merger Sub I merged with and 
into Leafly, with Leafly surviving as a wholly owned subsidiary of Merida, and following the Initial Merger and as part of 
a single integrated transaction with the Initial Merger, Leafly merged with and into Merger Sub II, with Merger Sub II 
surviving as a wholly owned subsidiary of Merida. Leafly was deemed the accounting predecessor and New Leafly is the 
successor SEC registrant, which means that Leafly’s financial statements for previous periods will be disclosed in  Leafly’s 
future periodic reports filed with the SEC.

While the legal acquirer in the merger agreement is Merida, for financial accounting and reporting purposes under 
U.S. GAAP, Leafly is the accounting acquirer and the Mergers will be accounted for as a “reverse recapitalization.” A 
reverse recapitalization does not result in a new basis of accounting, and the financial statements of the combined entity 
represent the continuation of the financial statements of Leafly in many respects. Under this method of accounting, Merida 
is treated as the “acquired” company for financial reporting purposes. For accounting purposes, Leafly is deemed to be the 
accounting acquirer in the Business Combination and, consequently, the Business Combination will be treated as a 
recapitalization of Leafly (i.e., a capital transaction involving the issuance of stock by Merida for the stock of Leafly). 
Accordingly, the consolidated assets, liabilities, and results of operations of Leafly became the historical financial 
statements of New Leafly, and Merida’s assets, liabilities and results of operations will be consolidated with Leafly’s 
beginning on the acquisition date. Operations prior to the closing of the merger will be presented as those of Leafly in 
future reports. The net assets of Merida will be recognized at historical cost (which is expected to be consistent with 
carrying value), with no goodwill or other intangible assets recorded. We anticipate that the most significant change in 
Leafly’s reported financial position as a result of the closing of the Business Combination will be an increase in cash and 
cash equivalents of approximately $18 million from net proceeds, including proceeds from convertible notes issued upon 
closing of the Business Combination. 

In addition, $39 million from Merida's trust account was placed in escrow upon closing of the Business Combination, all or 
a portion of which may become available to Leafly. On December 22, 2021 and January 10, 2022, Merida entered into 
agreements with certain holders of shares of common stock issued in Merida’s initial public offering, pursuant to which 
such stockholders agreed not to seek redemption of up to 4,000,000 shares in aggregate in connection with Merida’s 
special meeting to approve the Business Combination. Pursuant to these agreements, the counterparties may elect to sell 
and transfer to the Company, and the Company shall purchase from the counterparties, up to 4,000,000 shares at a price per 
Share equal to $10.16 per Share or $10.01 per Share, as applicable. If the parties to these agreements (as described in the 
Prospectus Supplement we filed with the SEC on January 18, 2022) exercise their rights to put their shares back to Leafly 
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within three months of the closing of the Business Combination, such amount placed in escrow may not become available 
to Leafly, or may be available only in part.  

As a consequence of the Business Combination, Leafly became the successor to an SEC-registered and Nasdaq-listed 
company which requires Leafly to hire additional personnel and implement procedures and processes to address public 
company regulatory requirements and customary practices. Leafly has incurred, and expects to continue to incur, additional 
expenses as a public company for, among other things: additional directors’ and officers’ liability insurance; compensation 
for directors and additional internal and external accounting, legal, and administrative resources, including increased audit 
and legal fees; and costs of certain related software tools. 

Direct costs of the Business Combination and resulting recapitalization have been recorded to Prepaid expenses and other 
current assets in our Consolidated Balance Sheets and will be reclassified to additional paid-in capital upon closing of the 
Business Combination in 2022, while general costs associated with operating as a public company are expensed throughout 
our Consolidated Statements of Operations, as applicable, primarily to General and Administrative. We anticipate we will 
incur approximately $8.5 million to $9.5 million annually in incremental costs of operating as a public company.

2021 Plan

The New Leafly 2021 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2021 Plan”) became effective immediately upon closing the Business 
Combination. Pursuant to the 2021 Plan, 4,502,495 shares of common stock are initially reserved for issuance. During the 
term of the 2021 Plan, the number of shares of common stock thereunder automatically increase on each January 1, 
commencing on January 1, 2023, and ending on (and including) January 1, 2031, by the lesser of (i) 10% of the fully 
diluted shares of common stock as of the last day of the preceding fiscal year and (ii) 4,502,495 shares (adjusted pursuant 
to the terms of the 2021 Plan). No awards have been granted under this plan as of the date of this filing.

Earn Out Plan

The Earn Out Plan became effective immediately upon closing of the Business Combination. Pursuant to the 2021 Earnout 
Plan, 570,927 shares of Common Stock have been reserved for issuance under the Earn Out Plan. These shares will vest if 
the Company achieves certain thresholds prior to the third anniversary of the Business Combination. No awards have been 
granted under this plan as of the date of this filing.

Additionally, as a result of the Mergers, Leafly shareholders have been granted the contingent right to receive up to 
5,429,073 restricted shares of Common Stock (“Earn Out Shares”) that will vest if the Company achieves certain 
thresholds prior to the third anniversary of the Business Combination.

2021 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The New Leafly 2021 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”) became effective immediately upon closing the 
Business Combination. Pursuant to the ESPP, 1,125,624 shares of common stock are initially reserved for issuance. During 
the term of the ESPP, the number of shares of common stock thereunder automatically increases on each January 1, 
commencing on January 1, 2023 and ending on (and including) January 1, 2031, by the lesser of (i) 2.5% of the fully 
diluted shares of common stock as of the last day of the preceding fiscal year and (ii) 1,125,624 shares (as adjusted 
pursuant to the terms of the ESPP). No employees participate in the ESPP yet as of the date of this filing.

Option Modification

Concurrent with the closing of the Business Combination, the vesting provisions of stock options previously granted to our 
Chief Executive Officer in 2021 to purchase 2,916,596 shares of common stock were modified. The original award 
included the following vesting provisions:

• Liquidity Event Option: A stock option to purchase 1,458,298 shares of common stock will vest upon the 
earlier of (a) the closing of the Initial Public Offering of the Company's common stock or (b) a change in 
control, provided the recipient remains in continuous service.

• Milestone Option: A stock option to purchase 1,458,298 shares of common stock will vest one-third each 
upon the achievement of the three annual revenue targets of $75 million, $150 million, and $300 million, 
provided the recipient remains in continuous service:

The modified vesting provisions are as follows: 
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• Liquidity Event Option: A stock option to purchase 1,458,298 shares of common stock will vest as follows, 
provided the recipient remains in continuous service: 50% upon the closing of the Business Combination and 
50% upon the earlier of (i) the Company’s achievement of a $1 billion market capitalization for any 20 days 
during a 30-day period on or before the fourth anniversary of the closing of the Business Combination (the 
“Market Cap Milestone”) or (ii) a change in control

• Milestone Option: A stock option to purchase 1,458,298 shares of common stock will vest upon the 
achievement of the following milestones, provided that the recipient remains in continuous service:

◦ First Milestone: 50% of the total number of shares subject to the stock options will vest if the 
Company’s gross revenue for the year ending December 31, 2022 equals or exceeds $65 million. A 
prorata amount vests in the event that the Company’s gross revenue equals or exceeds 90% of the 
revenue target.

◦ Second Milestone: 50% of the total number of shares subject to the stock options will vest if the 
Company’s gross revenue for the year ending December 31, 2023 equals or exceeds $101 million. A 
prorata amount vests in the event that the Company’s gross revenue equals or exceeds 90% of the 
revenue target.

◦ In the event the Second Milestone is achieved, any unvested portion of the stock option subject to 
the First Milestone will fully vest.

◦ In the event the Market Cap Milestone is achieved, any unvested portion of the Milestone Option 
will fully vest. 

◦ The date of vesting for the Milestone Option will be the earlier of (i) the date following the 
Company’s filing with the SEC of its Form 10-K for the applicable fiscal year in which the 
applicable revenue target was attained or, (ii) the date the Market Cap Milestone is achieved. 

◦ All shares subject to the Milestone Option will vest immediately upon a change in control.

◦ The Milestone Option will remain outstanding unless and until the last possible time that the Second 
Milestone can be achieved, the Market Cap Milestone can be achieved, or a change in control may 
occur during the term of the Milestone Option award, subject to the recipient's continued service.

2022 Notes

In January 2022, Merida entered into a $30 million convertible note purchase agreement with certain investors in 
accordance with the 2022 Note Purchase Agreement ("2022 Notes"). Leafly guaranteed and joined as a party to the 2022 
Notes on February 4, 2022 in connection with the Business Combination. The 2022 Notes bear interest at 8% annually, 
paid in cash semi-annually in arrears on July 31 and January 31 of each year, and mature on January 31, 2025. The 2022 
Notes are unsecured convertible senior notes due 2025. They are convertible at the option of the holders at any time before 
maturity at an initial conversion share price of $12.50. In addition, the Company may, at its election, force the conversion 
of the 2022 Notes on or after January 31, 2024, if the volume-weighted average trading price of the Company’s common 
stock exceeds $18.00 for at least 20 trading days (whether or not consecutive) during a period of 30 consecutive trading 
days. The Company also has the option, on or after January 31, 2023 and prior to the 40th trading day immediately before 
the maturity date and subject to the holders’ ability to optionally convert, to redeem all or a portion of the 2022 Notes at a 
cash redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 2022 Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any. 
The holders of the 2022 Notes have the right to cause the Company to repurchase for cash all or a portion of the 2022 
Notes held by such holder upon the occurrence of a “fundamental change” (as defined) or in connection with certain asset 
sales, in each case at a price equal to 100% of par plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any.
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Exhibit 99.2

Item 7. LEAFLY'S MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND 
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Numbers in this section are presented in thousands, except for per share numbers. The following Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis (“MD&A”) should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes. The 
MD&A is intended to assist in understanding our financial condition and results of operations. This discussion contains 
forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results could differ materially from those 
anticipated due to various factors discussed under “Risk Factors” and “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking 
Statements” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Overview

Leafly is one of the cannabis industry’s leading marketplaces for brands and retailers to reach one of the largest audiences 
of consumers interested in cannabis. Leafly operates a platform that includes educational information, strains data, and 
news, enabling consumers to use Leafly’s content library to have an informed shopping experience. Leafly reduces the 
friction caused by fragmented regulation of cannabis across North America and offers a compliant digital marketplace that 
connects cannabis consumers with legal and licensed retailers and brands nearest them.

Leafly’s focus on the consumer experience has powered sustained revenue growth since Leafly was founded in 2010. 
Leafly allows each shopper to tailor their journey; selecting the store, brand, and cannabis form-factor that appeals to them. 
Once that shopper builds a basket and is ready to order, our non-plant-touching business model sends that order reservation 
to the store for payment and fulfillment. By matching stores and shoppers, we deliver value to all constituencies. We 
monetize our platform primarily through the sale of subscription packages, bundling e-commerce software and advertising 
solutions, as well as non-subscription-based advertising to retailers and brands. Through the participation on our platform, 
retailers and brands can reach and engage the 10 million average monthly active users ("MAUs") on our platform, one of 
the largest cannabis-focused audiences in the world.

In 2021, we began building up our business again as the broader economy started to reopen and COVID-19 restrictions 
lifted. Our hiring ramped and we made significant investments, in particular, in our sales and marketing organization, in 
building out our senior leadership team, in launching focused new products and services and on growing the number of 
supply partners on our platform. Expenses increased accordingly, and also as we built infrastructure in preparation for 
becoming and operating as a public company. We expect we will continue making similar investments as we continue to 
grow and mature the business. In 2021, we were successful in growing the number of the supply partners on our platform 
during the year and revenue increased accordingly, while average revenue per account decreased due to strategic expansion 
into lower population or lower demand markets at a lower price point. Subsequent to year-end, in February of 2022, we 
closed our business combination with Merida and became a public company. Through the closing of the business 
combination, we obtained additional financing from the issuance of convertible notes, the proceeds of which we anticipate 
we will use to continue making strategic investments in the growth of our business. Please see the detailed discussions of 
our results of operations and financial condition within Management's Discussion and Analysis below. 

COVID-19 and Strategic Refocusing of the Business

COVID-19 was declared a global pandemic by the World Health Organization in March of 2020 and has had a significant 
impact on the global economy and thus, Leafly. Pandemic-driven uncertainties and new leadership led management to re-
examine its business strategy, deciding to refocus the business on its online, three-sided marketplace and to wind-down 
other strategic initiatives, including its operation in Germany and Leafly Market, a Leafly-owned CBD online store. In 
connection with the reprioritized strategy, Leafly laid off 54 employees in January of 2020 and an additional 91 employees 
in March of 2020. Concurrent with the March layoffs, Leafly also implemented travel restrictions and a work from home 
policy, resulting in a renegotiation of our lease obligations and the ultimate termination of our main Seattle office lease in 
March of 2021. As of the date of this report, these policies have not materially impacted our operations, financial reporting, 
or internal controls. See discussion of the impact of these changes on our operating expenses under “— Restructuring” and 
“— Discussion of our Results of Operations” below.

The COVID-19 pandemic led to many provincial and state lockdowns and retail businesses were forced to close or limit in-
person shopping. These policy decisions had a direct impact on Leafly and its retail partners. In early 2020, with a far more 
restricted in-store shopping experience, sales and collections slowed versus expectations. As the year progressed, consumer 
demand shifted to stores with an ability to serve shoppers via e-commerce, which made a positive impact on many of our 
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retail partners’ businesses. For Leafly, this resulted in stable revenue across Retail and Brands through 2020. The demand 
for legal cannabis accelerated throughout the year, while in-store shopping restrictions remained in place. That increasing 
demand, coupled with limited or no in-store shopping, led many retailers to adopt e-commerce solutions. These macro 
impacts drove adoption of Leafly’s online ordering tools, both by our consumers and retail partners. As the broader 
economy started to reopen and restrictions lifted, in 2021, we saw a decline in our traffic from peak activity on our 
platform in the second quarter of 2020 to levels closer to those prior to the pandemic. 

Leafly remains focused on an online ordering strategy and has a predominantly work from home policy with limited use of 
co-working space and business travel.

Restructuring

In connection with the layoffs discussed under “— COVID-19 and Strategic Refocusing of the Business” above, Leafly 
recorded a total of $464 and $84 of pre-tax severance expense spread across its operating expense categories during the 
first and second quarters of 2020, respectively. A total of 145 employees were terminated, and the restructuring program 
was completed in the second quarter of 2020. Though we incurred additional operating expenses early in 2020 due to these 
severance costs, we estimate that these employee terminations reduced our expenses by nearly $3,750 per quarter from 
what they would have been otherwise while headcount levels remained low. As the broader economy started to reopen and 
restrictions lifted and we raised additional funding through convertible note issuances in 2021, our hiring ramped. Our 
number of employees is now approaching pre-pandemic levels, with different hiring prioritization across functions. Our 
sales and marketing headcount now exceeds pre-pandemic levels, while our product development and general and 
administrative headcount remain lower than pre-pandemic levels. Qualified individuals are in high demand, in particular 
software engineers, and we are exploring various options for staff augmentation while the market for full-time employees 
in North America remains highly competitive. 

In May 2020, Leafly amended the lease for its Seattle-based headquarters, reducing the square feet leased and reducing the 
monthly payment to $75 effective August 1, 2020. The amended lease also included a new, earlier termination date of 
March 31, 2021. The effect of this amendment was to reduce our go-forward operating expenses by nearly $400 per quarter 
from what they would have been otherwise. We currently remain without an active, long-term headquarters lease, though 
we may enter into a new lease for a Seattle-based corporate office space in 2022. We expect that space would 
accommodate a hybrid in-person and work-from-home team. 

Merger and Public Company Costs

On February 4, 2022, Leafly consummated the business combination pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated  
August 9, 2021 and amended on September 8, 2021 and on January 11, 2022 (as amended, the “Merger Agreement”) (the 
"Business Combination"). Merger Sub I merged with and into Leafly, with Leafly surviving as a wholly owned subsidiary 
of Merida, and following the Initial Merger and as part of a single integrated transaction with the Initial Merger, Leafly 
merged with and into Merger Sub II, with Merger Sub II surviving as a wholly owned subsidiary of Merida. Leafly was 
deemed the accounting predecessor and New Leafly is the successor SEC registrant, which means that Leafly’s financial 
statements for previous periods will be disclosed in  Leafly’s future periodic reports filed with the SEC.

While the legal acquirer in the merger agreement is Merida, for financial accounting and reporting purposes under 
U.S. GAAP, Leafly is the accounting acquirer and the Mergers will be accounted for as a “reverse recapitalization.” A 
reverse recapitalization does not result in a new basis of accounting, and the financial statements of the combined entity 
represent the continuation of the financial statements of Leafly in many respects. Under this method of accounting, Merida 
is treated as the “acquired” company for financial reporting purposes. For accounting purposes, Leafly is deemed to be the 
accounting acquirer in the Business Combination and, consequently, the Business Combination will be treated as a 
recapitalization of Leafly (i.e., a capital transaction involving the issuance of stock by Merida for the stock of Leafly). 
Accordingly, the consolidated assets, liabilities, and results of operations of Leafly remain the historical financial 
statements of Leafly, and Merida’s assets, liabilities and results of operations will be consolidated with Leafly’s beginning 
on the acquisition date. Operations prior to the closing of the merger will be presented as those of Leafly in future reports. 
The net assets of Merida will be recognized at historical cost (which is expected to be consistent with carrying value, 
including fair value, as applicable), with no goodwill or other intangible assets recorded. We anticipate that the most 
significant change in Leafly’s reported financial position as a result of the Business Combination will be an increase in 
cash and cash equivalents of approximately $18 million from net proceeds, including proceeds from convertible notes 
issued upon closing of the Business Combination. In addition, $39 million from Merida's trust account was placed in 
escrow upon closing of the Business Combination, all or a portion of which may become available to Leafly. On December 
22, 2021 and January 10, 2022, Merida entered into agreements with certain holders of shares of common stock issued in 
Merida’s initial public offering, pursuant to which such stockholders agreed not to seek redemption of up to 4,000,000 
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shares in aggregate in connection with Merida’s special meeting to approve the Business Combination. Pursuant to these 
agreements, the counterparties may elect to sell and transfer to the Company, and the Company shall purchase from the 
counterparties, up to 4,000,000 shares at a price per Share equal to $10.16 per Share or $10.01 per Share, as applicable. If 
the parties to these agreements (as described in the Prospectus Supplement we filed with the SEC on January 18, 2022) 
exercise their rights to put their shares back to Leafly within three months of the closing of the Business Combination, such 
amount placed in escrow may not become available to Leafly, or may be available only in part. See “—Liquidity” for 
further information.

As a consequence of the Business Combination, Leafly became the successor to an SEC-registered and Nasdaq-listed 
company which requires Leafly to hire additional personnel and implement procedures and processes to address public 
company regulatory requirements and customary practices. Leafly has incurred, and expects to continue to incur, additional 
expenses as a public company for, among other things: additional directors’ and officers’ liability insurance; compensation 
for directors and additional internal and external accounting, legal, and administrative resources, including increased audit 
and legal fees; and costs of certain related software tools. 

Direct costs of the Business Combination and resulting recapitalization have been recorded to Prepaid expenses and other 
current assets in our Consolidated Balance Sheets and will be reclassified to additional paid-in capital upon closing of the 
Business Combination in 2022, while general costs associated with becoming and operating as a public company are 
expensed throughout our Consolidated Statements of Operations, as applicable, primarily to General and Administrative. 
We currently anticipate we will incur approximately $8.5 million to $9.5 million annually in incremental cash costs of 
operating as a public company. This estimate does not reflect general increases in costs due to growing our business. Non-
cash stock-based compensation expenses will also likely increase significantly as we transition to operating as a public 
company, leveraging our available equity, including derivatives thereof, to fund operations. These estimates and 
expectations may change as we begin to experience these new conditions.

Key Metrics

In addition to the measures presented in our consolidated financial statements, our management regularly monitors certain 
measures in the operation of our business. As a result of the continued evolution of our business and our transition to a 
public company, we eliminated one key metric and modified two others, as follows:

• We eliminated Order enabled retailers as a key metric because it is not a direct driver of our revenue 
growth nor a metric commonly shared across our industry. 

• We modified the calculation of MAUs to include Leafly applications developed for use on a particular 
platform or device ("native apps"). The prior definition of MAUs was based on visitors to Leafly's websites 
only. We made this modification to improve period-to-period comparability of traffic to our platform as users 
move between our websites and native apps. 

• We  modified the calculation of retailer average revenue per account ("ARPA") to include a numerator 
representing account-based retail revenue rather than product-based retail revenue, which we report for 
segment reporting purposes under our Retail segment. We made this change to better align the numerator of 
this metric with its denominator, which is the number of accounts.  

Our key metrics are discussed below. 

Monthly active users

Monthly active users (“MAUs”) represents the total unique visitors to Leafly websites and native apps each month, which 
in turn represents the maximum potential unique visitors that could become a customer of a dispensary or brand listed on 
Leafly’s platform, within a given month. Leafly’s revenue model for dispensaries and brands is based, in part, on the 
number of visitors it can drive to dispensary or brand listings on the platform. Providing more visitors, as represented by 
MAUs, may lead to increased advertising rates for both dispensaries and brands.

Users (visitors) are considered active by initiating a session on at least one webpage or app. Each month’s MAUs is the 
total of unique visitors to Leafly during the specified month and includes both new visitors as well as those returning from 
the previous month. We count a unique user the first time an individual accesses one of our websites or native apps during 
a calendar month. If an individual accesses our websites using different web browsers within a given month, the first access 
by each such web browser is counted as a separate unique user. If an individual accesses more than one of our websites or 
native apps in a single month, the first access to each website or app is counted as a separate unique user since unique users 
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are tracked separately for each domain and native app. The unique visitors are measured using Google Analytics for our 
web applications and Firebase for our native applications.

Due to third-party technological limitations, user software settings, or user behavior, Google Analytics may assign a unique 
cookie to different instances of access by the same individual to our websites. In such instances, Google Analytics would 
count different instances of access by the same individual as separate unique users. Accordingly, reliance on the number of 
unique users counted by Google Analytics may overstate the actual number of unique users who access our websites during 
the period. Additionally, we cannot differentiate between a user who accesses Leafly across both the web and a native app, 
which could overstate the number of unique users. 

A growing number of MAUs is indicative of our overall product health as it is the result of metrics reflecting both retention 
and acquisition of customers of our suppliers. While we consider MAUs to be a leading indicator of general product health 
representing the blend of new customer acquisition and the retention of returning customers, we also acknowledge that this 
must be paired with a deeper analysis of MAU behavioral metrics. We measure the quality of experience by looking at 
MAU cohorts engagement behaviors as measured by time on site, interaction with personalization features such as 
favoriting and following, and orders placed.

Ending retail accounts

Ending retail accounts is the number of paying retailer accounts with Leafly as of the last month of the respective period. 
Retail accounts can include more than one retailer. This metric is helpful because it represents a portion of the volume 
element of our revenue and describes our market share.

Retailer average revenue per account

Retailer ARPA is calculated as monthly retail revenue, on an account basis, divided by the number of retail accounts that 
were active during that same month. An active account is one that had an active paying subscription with Leafly in the 
month. Leafly does not provide retailers with a free subscription offering. This metric is helpful because it represents the 
price element of our revenue.

Year ended December 31, 2021 2020 Change Change (%)
Average MAUs (in thousands)(1)  10,005  11,531  (1,526)  (13) %
Ending retail accounts(2)  5,265  3,665  1,600  44 %
Retailer average revenue per account (ARPA)(3) $ 636 $ 735 $ (99)  (13) %

____________

(1) Calculated as a simple average for the period presented. Using the prior calculation that excluded native apps, Average MAUs 
would have been 9,278 and 10,592 for 2021 and 2020, respectively, for a decrease of 1,314 or 12%.

(2) Represents the figure outstanding in the last month of the respective period.
(3) Calculated as a simple average of monthly retailer ARPA for the period presented. Using the prior calculation of retailer ARPA 

which included retail revenue on a product basis, retailer ARPA would have been $631 and $734 for 2021 and 2020, respectively 
for a decrease of $103 or 14%.

The pandemic accelerated interest in legal cannabis, driving more traffic to Leafly. This resulted in more MAUs across 
Leafly’s platform in 2020. The lockdowns across certain communities and restrictions on in-store shopping drove many 
shoppers to an e-commerce solution. As the broader economy started to reopen and restrictions lifted, we saw a decline in 
our traffic from peak activity on our platform in the second quarter of 2020. As a result, MAUs decreased for the year 
ended December 31, 2021 as compared to the prior year.

The Company focused primarily on growing the number of supply partners on the platform in 2021, leading to year over 
year growth in ending retail accounts. Part of this growth in retail accounts included expanding into lower population or 
lower demand markets at a lower price point, a strategic decision which contributed to a decline in ARPA.

Components of our Results of Operations

Revenue

We generate our revenue through the sale of online advertising and online order reservation enablement on the Leafly 
platform for suppliers in our Retail and Brands segments. Within our Retail segment, we monetize our multi-sided retail 
marketplace through monthly subscriptions that enable retailers to advertise to and acquire potential shoppers. Our 
solutions allow retailers, where legally permissible, to accept online orders from shoppers, who visit Leafly.com or use a 
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Leafly-powered online order reservation solution, including our iOS app. Within our Brands segment, our revenue is 
derived by creating custom advertising campaigns for both small and large brands that target Leafly’s broad and diverse 
audience and offering brands profile listings on our platform, which are sold on a monthly recurring subscription or annual 
basis. Advertising opportunities include on-site digital display, native placements, email, branded content, and off-site 
audience extension. Leafly’s advertising partners span a variety of verticals including hardware and accessories, THC-
infused products, hemp, CBD, and seed.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue consists primarily of technical labor costs associated with development of our website and apps, costs of 
website infrastructure and analytics (including hosting fees and third-party software licenses that are embedded in our 
platform), costs of point-of-sale and third-party platform integrations, audience extension costs (unique to Brands), 
merchant credit card processing fees, and email automation software (unique to Brands). In 2020, Leafly cost of revenue 
also included merchandise costs for Leafly Market inventory, which were discontinued in 2020 when Leafly Market ceased 
operating.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses consist of sales and marketing, product development, and general and administrative expenses.

Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of employee compensation, as well as costs of advertising and marketing 
activity for promoting our company, consulting and contractor costs, and trade show and event costs. Events include 
cannabis enthusiast days of celebration such as 420, which celebrates cannabis, and 710 oil day, which celebrates cannabis 
oils and concentrates.

Product Development expenses consist primarily of employee compensation, as well as consulting and contractor 
expenses, and related overhead costs.

General and administrative expenses consist primarily of compensation for our finance and accounting, legal, human 
resources, and administrative personnel. General and administrative expenses also include professional services, litigation, 
and other administrative expenses.

Discussion of our Results of Operations — 2021 Compared to 2020

Revenue

Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020 Change ($) Change (%)
Retail $ 33,628 $ 29,591 $ 4,037  14 %
Brands  9,408  6,801  2,607  38 %
Total revenue $ 43,036 $ 36,392 $ 6,644  18 %

Retail revenue from digital media display ads and subscription sales from licensed dispensaries increased $2,393 and 
$1,654, respectively. Digital media display ads revenue growth was driven by increased volumes of display ads, reflecting 
further legalization of cannabis and other factors discussed under “— Other Metrics” above. Subscription sales revenue 
growth was also driven by increased volume, as the number of ending retail accounts increased 44% during this period due 
to continued onboarding of new retail subscriptions. These increases were offset in part by an overall reduction in prices in 
target markets, where we sought to attract a greater number of local retailers onto our platform. In August of 2020, we 
moved to a regional pricing model based on traffic and orders, which had the effect of decreasing overall prices within our 
mix of revenue during 2021 when compared to 2020, as reflected in a 13% decrease in ARPA.

The Company’s current systems do not allow us to precisely quantify changes in Brands revenue attributable to price and 
volume. We continue to implement systems and processes that will allow us to do so. In the meantime, the information we 
have from our existing systems, combined with our knowledge of changes in list prices, informs the discussion of Brands 
volume and pricing that follows. We believe Brands revenue grew primarily due to increased volume as we offer a solution 
for brands that continue to lack access to their target audience through certain traditional advertising channels that do not 
work with the cannabis industry, and as CBD and related cannabis-adjacent brands want to advertise to our audience. By 
product, the Brands revenue increase was driven primarily by growth in channel advertising (including direct to consumer 
email) and digital media (including audience extension services), which grew $1,221 and $1,021, respectively. 
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Cost of revenue

Year ended December 31, 2021 2020 Change ($) Change (%)
Retail $ 3,193 $ 3,301 $ (108)  (3) %
Brands  1,790  1,661  129  8 %
Total cost of revenue $ 4,983 $ 4,962 $ 21  — %

Retail cost of revenue decreased due primarily to $266 lower website infrastructure and analytics costs and a $282 
reduction in employee compensation because of the restructuring discussed above under "- Restructuring," offset in part by 
$379 higher integration costs.

Brands cost of revenue increased due primarily to $307 higher costs of audience extension, which were included for only a 
portion of the comparative prior year period due to launch of the service in May 2020. Audience extension is more 
expensive for Leafly to deliver than advertising on its own properties due to the cost of paying third party fees for the 
placements of ads on non-Leafly sites. These increases were offset in part by merchandise costs for Leafly Market 
inventory of $175 in 2020, which was discontinued in 2020 resulting in no associated costs in 2021.

Operating expenses

Year ended December 31, 2021 2020 Change ($) Change (%)
Sales and marketing $ 19,640 $ 13,189 $ 6,451  49 %
Product development  13,896  14,485  (589)  (4) %
General and administrative  15,142  13,052  2,090  16 %
Total operating expenses $ 48,678 $ 40,726 $ 7,952  20 %

Sales and marketing expenses grew as we began ramping up investments again following a shorter than expected impact of 
the COVID-19 pandemic and increased funding through the issuance of convertible notes. We increased advertising and 
marketing spending by $2,842 and employee compensation costs by $3,357 as we approximately doubled our number of 
sales and marketing staff when comparing 2020 and 2021. 

Product development expenses decreased primarily due to a $616 reduction in employee compensation, primarily reflecting 
lower average headcount offset in part by higher rates of bonuses.

General and administrative expenses increased due primarily to: a $2,828 increase in compensation, reflecting higher rates 
of salaries and related benefits and bonuses; a $1,129 increase in recruiting costs, due in part to hiring several senior-level 
employees during the fourth quarter of 2021 and a significant number of sales and marketing staff during the year; and a 
$552 increase in insurance costs, primarily related to directors and officers insurance for pre-Business Combination 
coverage. These increases were offset in part by a number of decreases, including:

• a decrease of $1,205 in the cost of management services from Privateer Management as the company matured and 
had less need for their services (see "- Related Party Relationships" below);

• a decrease of $413 in bad debt expense, which was elevated in 2020 reflecting the impact of COVID-19 on some 
of our customers; and

• a decrease in facilities costs of $508 as employees worked from home.

Other expense

Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020 Change ($) Change (%)
Interest expense, net $ (1,349) $ (637) $ (712)  112 %
Other expense, net  (50)  (31)  (19)  61 %
Total other expense $ (1,399) $ (668) $ (731)  109 %

Interest expense, net increased due to a 106% higher principal balance of convertible promissory notes outstanding, on 
average, in 2021.
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Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Earnings Before Interest, Taxes and Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA) and Adjusted EBITDA

To provide investors with additional information regarding our financial results, we have disclosed EBITDA and Adjusted 
EBITDA, both of which are non-GAAP financial measures that we calculate as net loss before interest, taxes and 
depreciation and amortization expense in the case of EBITDA and further adjusted to exclude non-cash, unusual and/or 
infrequent costs in the case of Adjusted EBITDA. Below we have provided a reconciliation of net loss (the most directly 
comparable GAAP financial measure) to EBITDA and from EBITDA to Adjusted EBITDA.

We present EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA because these metrics are a key measure used by our management to evaluate 
our operating performance, generate future operating plans, and make strategic decisions regarding the allocation of 
investment capacity. Accordingly, we believe that EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA provide useful information to investors 
and others in understanding and evaluating our operating results in the same manner as our management.

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA have limitations as an analytical tool, and you should not consider it in isolation or as a 
substitute for analysis of our results as reported under GAAP. Some of these limitations are as follows:

• although depreciation and amortization are non-cash charges, the assets being depreciated and amortized may 
have to be replaced in the future, and both EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA do not reflect cash capital 
expenditure requirements for such replacements or for new capital expenditure requirements;

• EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA do not reflect changes in, or cash requirements for, our working capital 
needs; and

• EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA do not reflect interest or tax payments that may represent a reduction in cash 
available to us.

Because of these limitations, you should consider EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA alongside other financial performance 
measures, including net loss and our other GAAP results.

A reconciliation of net loss to non-GAAP EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020

Net loss $ (12,024) $ (9,964) 
Interest expense, net  1,349  637 
Depreciation and amortization expense  253  312 

EBITDA  (10,422)  (9,015) 
Stock-based compensation  1,022  1,158 

Adjusted EBITDA $ (9,400) $ (7,857) 

The increase in our loss on an EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA basis is due to increased operating expenses offset in part 
by increased revenue.

Financial Condition

Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash

Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash totaled $28,695 and $4,934 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
The increase was primarily due to proceeds from the issuance of convertible promissory notes. See Note 3 and Note 10 to 
our consolidated financial statements within this Current Report for more information.

Cash flows

As compared to the year ended December 31, 2020, cash used in operations decreased by $2,944 to $6,848 for year ended 
December 31, 2021, mainly due to reduced net loss from operations. See discussion under “— Discussion of our Results of 
Operations” above for more information. Cash provided by financing grew $21,840 over this same period to $30,696 for 
the year ended December 31, 2021, mainly due to increased proceeds from the issuance of convertible promissory notes.
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Stock and convertible promissory note issuances

Since our capital restructuring in 2019, we have financed a sizable portion of our operations from issuances of stock and 
convertible promissory notes. The proceeds of these issuances have been used to fund, among other things, working capital 
and capital expenditures. See more information about our stock at Note 11 and our convertible notes at Note 10 to our 
consolidated financial statements within this Current Report.

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue is primarily related to software subscriptions and display ads. The revenue deferred at December 31, 
2021 is expected to be recognized in the subsequent 12-month period. See Note 8 to our consolidated financial statements 
within this Current Report for further discussion.

Contractual obligations and other planned uses of capital

We are obligated to repay any convertible notes that do not ultimately convert to equity, as well as the other operating 
liabilities on our Consolidated Balance Sheets, such as accrued liabilities. We intend to continue to invest in product and 
feature development, expanding our marketing and sales operations, improving and expanding our technology and finance 
infrastructure, hiring additional and retaining existing employees, pursuing strategic opportunities, and meeting the 
increased compliance requirements associated with our transition to and operation as a public company. In addition, we 
intend to add back in-person working space over time. As we continue to grow, we expect the aggregate amount of these 
expenses will also continue to grow.

Liquidity

Leafly has incurred losses since its inception and had an accumulated deficit of $69,770 and $57,746 at December 31, 2021 
and December 31, 2020, respectively.

Upon the closing of the Business Combination, Leafly issued additional convertible notes, which provided incremental 
funding for our operations. See Note 10 and Note 19 to our consolidated financial statements within this Current Report for 
more information. We anticipate that our capital resources are sufficient to fund our operations for at least the following 
12 months.

On December 22, 2021 and January 10, 2022, Merida and the Sponsor entered into agreements (the “Share Transfer, Non-
Redemption and Forward Purchase Agreements”) with certain holders of shares of common stock issued in Merida’s initial 
public offering, pursuant to which such holders agreed not to seek redemption of up to 4 million shares in the aggregate in 
connection with Merida’s special meeting to approve the Business Combination. The Share Transfer, Non-Redemption and 
Forward Purchase Agreements further provide that such holders shall have the right, but not the obligation, to have Leafly 
repurchase any such shares held by the applicable holder as of the closing and not later sold into the market at a price of 
$10.01 per share (with respect to 1.4 million of the shares subject to the Share Transfer, Non-Redemption and Forward 
Purchase Agreements) and $10.16 per share (with respect to 2.6 million of the shares subject to the Share Transfer, Non-
Redemption and Forward Purchase Agreements) on the three-month anniversary of the closing (the “Redemption Date”); 
provided, however, that if certain holders sell their shares in the open market prior to the one-month anniversary of the 
closing at a price in excess of $10.06 per share, Leafly will pay such holders $0.05 per share sold irrespective of the sale 
price received by such holders. Upon the closing of the Business Combination, approximately $39 million was deposited 
into escrow accounts for the benefit of the holders party to the Share Transfer, Non-Redemption and Forward Purchase 
Agreements. Leafly has been informed that certain holders have sold 40 thousand shares covered by the Share Transfer, 
Non-Redemption and Forward Purchase Agreements following the closing of the Business Combination. In the event that 
holders with respect to the remaining 3.96 million shares subject to the Share Transfer, Non-Redemption and Forward 
Purchase Agreements elect to have their shares redeemed by Leafly on the Redemption Date, Leafly may not receive any 
further proceeds from the escrow account. From time to time, Leafly may enter into discussions with the parties to the 
Share Transfer, Non-Redemption and Forward Purchase Agreements to seek to amend the terms thereof, including, but not 
limited, with respect to an extension of the Redemption Date or a change to the redemption price or the price at which such 
holders may sell shares in the market. There can be no assurance that Leafly will enter into any such amendment on 
favorable terms or at all.  

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes are prepared in accordance with GAAP. Preparing 
consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets, liabilities, revenue, and expenses, as well as disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. An appreciation of our 
critical accounting policies is necessary to understand our financial results. In some cases, we could reasonably use 
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different accounting policies and estimates, and changes in our estimates are reasonably likely to occur from period to 
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ materially from our estimates, and our financial condition or results of 
operations could be affected. We base our estimates on our experience and other assumptions that we believe are 
reasonable, and we evaluate these estimates on an ongoing basis. We refer to accounting estimates of this type as critical 
accounting policies and estimates, which we discuss further below.

Revenue recognition

Revenue recognition is one of our critical accounting policies, not because of the degree of judgment and subjectivity 
within the policy but because of its importance to our financial statements.

Revenue is measured based on a specified amount of consideration in a contract with a customer. Leafly recognizes 
revenue when a performance obligation is satisfied by transferring control of promised services to a customer at an amount 
that reflects the consideration Leafly expects to be entitled to in exchange for those services. Due to the complexity of 
certain contracts, revenue recognition is dependent on contract-specific terms, which may vary with each contract.

Leafly’s revenue is derived through online software and advertising services, primarily through subscription agreements. 
Leafly also provides advertising on a per-impression delivered basis. Revenue associated with software subscriptions and 
display ads are recognized over time over the subscription period, which average one year or less, as the services are 
provided. Revenue associated with one-time content push to customers are recognized at a point in time upon delivery of 
the specified service.

Contract liabilities consist of deferred revenue, which is recorded when Leafly has received consideration, or has the right 
to receive consideration, in advance of transferring the performance obligations under the contract to the customer. 
Deferred revenue is recognized when the performance obligation is satisfied.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Leafly evaluates the collectability of accounts receivable based on a combination of factors including historical experience 
and loss patterns, the number of days of past due billings, an evaluation of the potential risk of loss associated with 
delinquent accounts, and known delinquent accounts. Adjustments to the allowance for doubtful accounts occur when new 
information becomes available that allows Leafly to estimate the allowance more accurately.

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation expense represents the cost of the grant date fair value of stock option grants, estimated in 
accordance with the applicable accounting guidance, recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. The 
vesting period generally approximates the expected service period of the awards. When awards include a performance 
condition that impacts the vesting or exercisability of the award, the Company records compensation cost when it becomes 
probable that the performance condition will be met and the service is provided. Compensation cost for awards with a 
performance condition are recognized over the shorter of the derived service period or the explicit/implicit service period. 
Compensation expense for awards subject to market-based conditions are recognized on a straight-line basis over the 
derived service period, regardless of whether the market condition is satisfied. Forfeitures are recognized and accounted for 
as they occur.

The fair value of stock options with service or performance conditions is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model, inclusive of assumptions for risk-free interest rates, expected dividends, expected terms, 
expected volatility, and the fair value of the underlying stock. The fair value of stock options with market conditions is 
estimated on the date of grant using a Monte Carlo simulation model, inclusive of assumptions for risk-free interest rates, 
expected terms, expected volatility, and the target price. Significant changes to the key assumptions underlying the factors 
used could result in different fair values of common stock at each valuation date, which could result in different stock-
based compensation expense.

The risk-free interest rates used are based on the U.S. Department of Treasury (“U.S. Treasury”) yield in effect at the time 
of grant for zero-coupon U.S. Treasury notes with maturities approximately equal to the expected term of the stock options. 
We base the assumed dividend yield on our expectation of not paying dividends in the foreseeable future. Options granted 
have a maximum contractual term of 10 years. The Company has limited historical stock option activity and therefore 
estimates the expected term of stock options granted using the simplified method, which represents the average of the 
contractual term of the stock option and its weighted-average vesting period. The expected volatility of stock options is 
based upon the historical volatility of a number of publicly traded companies in similar stages of development. The 
Company has historically not declared or paid any dividends and does not currently expect to do so in the foreseeable 
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future. Due to the absence of an active market for shares of Leafly stock as a private company, we estimate the fair value 
based upon a variety of factors, including its illiquid nature, sales of Leafly Preferred Stock, the effect of the rights and 
preferences of the stockholders of Leafly Preferred Stock, the prospects of a liquidity event, Leafly’s historical financial 
position and performance, and the current business climate in the marketplace. 

Emerging Growth Company Status

Leafly is an emerging growth company (“EGC”), as defined in the JOBS Act. Under the JOBS Act, EGCs can delay 
adopting new or revised accounting standards issued until such time as those standards apply to private companies. In 
electing this relief, the JOBS Act does not preclude an EGC from adopting a new or revised accounting standard earlier 
than the time that such standard applies to private companies. Leafly has elected to use this relief and will do so until the 
earlier of the date that it (a) is no longer an emerging growth company or (b) affirmatively and irrevocably opts out of the 
extended transition period provided in the JOBS Act. As described in “Recently Adopted Accounting Standards” in the 
notes to consolidated financial statements in this Current Report, we early adopted multiple accounting standards. As a 
result of the elected JOBS Act relief, these consolidated financial statements may not be comparable to companies that do 
not elect JOBS Act relief or choose to early adopt different accounting pronouncements than Leafly.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In connection with the preparation and audit of our consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 
2020, a material weakness was identified in our internal controls over financial reporting. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal controls over financial reporting such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of our annual or interim consolidated financial statements will not be prevented or 
detected on a timely basis.

The material weakness identified was a deficiency in the effectiveness of the review of accounting conclusions for complex 
debt and equity transactions. We remediated this material weakness during 2021 through the hiring of a Chief Financial 
Officer who has experience in complex derivative transactions and a Director of SEC Reporting with SEC reporting and 
technical accounting experience, as well as through the use of third-party consultants and specialists to supplement our 
internal resources. 

In addition to remediating this specific material weakness, we have begun our implementation of Sarbanes-Oxley and 
continue to assess and further develop our internal controls and procedures. Our full Sarbanes-Oxley implementation is 
forecasted to be complete late in 2022. Costs associated with these internal control activities are discussed in 
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in our periodic filings with the 
SEC.

We cannot assure you that the measures we have taken to date and may take in the future will be sufficient to prevent or 
avoid potential future material weaknesses. The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting is subject to 
various inherent limitations, including cost limitations, judgments used in decision making, assumptions about the 
likelihood of future events, the possibility of human error, and the risk of fraud. If we are unable to prevent or avoid future 
material weaknesses, our ability to record, process, and report financial information accurately, and to prepare financial 
statements within the time periods specified by the forms of the SEC, could be adversely affected which, in turn, may 
adversely affect our reputation and business and the market price of our Common Stock. In addition, any such failures 
could result in litigation or regulatory actions by the SEC or other regulatory authorities, loss of investor confidence, 
delisting of our securities, and harm to our reputation and financial condition, or diversion of financial and management 
resources from the operation of our business.

In addition, it is possible that control deficiencies could be identified by our management or by our independent registered 
public accounting firm in the future or may occur without being identified. Such a failure could result in regulatory scrutiny 
and cause investors to lose confidence in our reported financial results, lead to a default under our current or future 
indebtedness and otherwise have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, cash flows, or results of 
operations.
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Related Party Relationships

Officer Note

In March 2019, Leafly issued a recourse promissory note (the “Officer Note”) in the amount of $1,024 to John T. Leslie, 
who was an officer of Leafly. The Officer Note bore interest at 2.55%, compounded annually. The principal balance and 
accrued interest were due upon the earlier of (a) a liquidation event, (b) within 10 or 180 days following the termination of 
the officer depending on nature of the termination, (c) immediately prior to Leafly’s registration of securities under section 
12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or Leafly’s becoming subject to the reporting requirements of 
Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1933, as amended, if the officer was determined pursuant to Rule 3b-7 of 
the Securities Exchange Act of 1933, as amended, or was otherwise at that time a member of Leafly’s board of directors, 
(d) the officer’s acceptance of or appointment to a position which would qualify the officer as an executive officer of 
Leafly, or (e) any other change in the officer’s status or Leafly’s status which would cause the Officer Note to be deemed a 
prohibited extension of credit by Leafly under Section 402 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 or other applicable law. The 
recourse promissory note was secured by 1,330 shares of common stock.

Although the Officer Note was recourse to the individual, it was accounted for as nonrecourse since the recourse provision 
was not substantive. Accordingly, we accounted for the combination of the promissory note and restricted stock as a grant 
of an option, as the substance was similar to the grant of an option. The exercise price of this stock option was the principal 
and interest due on the promissory note. The fair value of the stock option was recognized over the requisite service period 
(not the term of the promissory note) through a charge to compensation cost. The maturity date of the promissory notes 
reflected the legal term of the stock option for purposes of valuing the award.

In August 2020, in connection with Mr. Leslie’s separation, Leafly cancelled the Officer Note and associated accrued 
interest in exchange for the repurchase of 1,505 unvested shares and 424 vested shares, with an original exercise price of 
$0.77, at a price of $0.55 per share. The excess of the repurchase price over the fair value of the stock on the repurchase 
date resulted in recognition of compensation cost of $367 during 2020.

Privateer Holdings and Privateer Management

Leafly was a wholly owned subsidiary of Privateer Holdings, Inc. (“Privateer Holdings”) until February 14, 2019, when 
Privateer Holdings effected a capital restructuring of Leafly and distributed its ownership in Leafly to its stockholders. In 
2019, Leafly entered into a Corporate Services Agreement, as amended, with Ten Eleven LLC dba Privateer Management. 
Two individuals on Leafly’s board of directors as of December 31, 2021, Michael Blue and Christian Groh, are officers of 
Privateer Management, which has therefore been identified as a related party. Privateer Management provided managerial 
services, support services, administrative services, at times paid for employee health benefit and other expenses on behalf 
of Leafly, and at times Leafly paid for employee health and benefit expenses on behalf of Privateer Holdings, through 
March 31, 2021. During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, Leafly recorded $0 and $1,205, respectively, for 
these expenses within general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. As of December 
31, 2021 and 2020, Leafly reported receivables of $0 and $263, respectively for employee health and benefits paid on 
behalf of Privateer Holdings. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, Leafly owed $0 and $580, respectively, to Privateer 
Management for corporate services and expenses paid on its behalf in 2020 and prior.

Other

One of Leafly’s significant investors, Brendan Kennedy, is a member of the board of directors of Tilray, Inc., which is the 
parent company of High Park Holdings Ltd., a customer of Leafly, and therefore has been identified as a related party. 
During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, Leafly recorded approximately $142 and $239, respectively, of 
revenue earned from contracts with this customer.

In June 2021, Mr. Kennedy purchased a convertible promissory note totaling $1,000. The note was issued as part of the 
existing series of 2021 Notes and is subject to the same interest rate, maturity, and conversion terms. See Note 10 of notes 
to consolidated financial statements within this Current Report for more information. 
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Exhibit 99.3
 

UPDATE TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 
Exhibit 99.1 of the Form 8-K of Leafly Holdings, Inc. ("New Leafly") filed with the Securities Exchange Commission 
("SEC") on February 10, 2022 (the "8-K") is replaced with the disclosure below. All terms not defined herein are defined 
in the 8-K.

 
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

 
Unless otherwise specified, numbers in this section are presented in thousands, except for per share numbers, conversion 
ratios and percentages. Unless the context otherwise requires, capitalized terms used below but not defined shall have the 
meaning set forth in the Proxy Statement/Prospectus/Consent Solicitation Statement we filed with the SEC on December 
21, 2021.
 
Introduction
 
The following unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information is presented to aid you in your analysis of 
the financial aspects of the Business Combination. The following unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial 
information has been prepared in accordance with Article 11 of Regulation S-X as amended by the final rule, Release No. 
33-10786 "Amendments to Financial Disclosures about Acquired and Disposed Businesses."
 
Merida Merger Corporation ("Merida") was a blank check company incorporated in Delaware on June 20, 2019. Merida 
was formed for the purpose of entering into a merger, share exchange, asset acquisition, stock purchase, recapitalization, 
reorganization or other similar business combination with one or more operating businesses or entities. As of December 31, 
2021, Merida had $90,849 in its trust account.
 
Leafly was founded in 2010 and has grown into a leading marketplace and information resource platform. Leafly offers a 
deep library of content, including detailed information about cannabis strains, retailers and current events. Leafly is a 
trusted destination to discover legal cannabis products and order them from licensed retailers. Leafly offers subscription-
based products and digital advertising. The company is headquartered in Seattle, Washington.
 
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet as of December 31, 2021 combines the historical balance 
sheet of Merida and the historical balance sheet of Leafly on a pro forma basis as if the Business Combination and the 
related transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, summarized below, had been consummated on December 31, 
2021. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2021, 
combines the historical statements of operations of Merida and Leafly for such period on a pro forma basis as if the 
Business Combination and the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, summarized below, had been 
consummated on January 1, 2021, the beginning of the earliest period presented.
 
The pro forma condensed combined financial information may not be useful in predicting the future financial condition and 
results of operations of Leafly. The actual financial position and results of operations may differ significantly from the pro 
forma amounts reflected herein due to a variety of factors.
 
The historical financial information of Merida was derived from the audited financial statements of Merida as of and for 
the year ended December 31, 2021, which are included in the Form 10-K we filed with the SEC on March 31, 2022. The 
historical financial information of Leafly was derived from the audited consolidated financial statements of Leafly as of 
and for the year ended December 31, 2021, which are included as Exhibit 99.1 to this Amendment No. 1 to the 8-K. This 
information should be read together with Merida's "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and 
Results of Operations" included elsewhere in the Annual Report on Form 10-K we filed with the SEC on March 31, 2022 
and Leafly's "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" included as 
exhibit 99.2 to this Amendment No. 1 to the 8-K, as well as with other financial information included elsewhere in the 
Form 10-K we filed with the SEC on March 31, 2022.
 
Accounting for the Transactions
 
The Business Combination is accounted for as a reverse recapitalization, in accordance with GAAP. Under this method of 
accounting, Merida is treated as the "acquired" company for financial reporting purposes. Accordingly, the Business 
Combination is treated as the equivalent of Leafly issuing stock for the net assets of Merida, accompanied by a 
recapitalization. The net assets of Merida are stated at historical cost, with no goodwill or other intangible assets recorded.
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Leafly has been determined to be the accounting acquirer based on evaluation of the following facts and circumstances 
under both the minimum and maximum redemption scenarios:

• Without including the effect of outstanding warrants, options, the Earnout Shares, or any further financing of 
Merida or Leafly, immediately after the closing of the Business Combination, Leafly's existing securityholders 
have the greatest voting interest in New Leafly with approximately 86% voting interest;

• Leafly has the ability to nominate the majority of the members of the board of directors of New Leafly following 
the Closing; and

• Leafly's senior management are the senior management of New Leafly.
 
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information has been prepared assuming no inclusion of the effect 
of any future grants of warrants, post-Business Combination grants of options, the issuance of Earnout Shares, or any 
further financing of Merida or Leafly.
 
The following summarizes the pro forma shares of New Leafly Common Stock issued and outstanding immediately after 
the Business Combination:
  Shares   %  
Merida public stockholders(1)   4,160    10.1  
Merida initial stockholders (including Sponsor and EarlyBirdCapital)(2)   1,667    4.0  
Merida convertible noteholders   38    0.1  
Total Merida   5,865    14.2  
Leafly existing securityholders(3)   35,434    85.8  
Weighted average shares outstanding, basic and diluted  pro forma   41,299    100.0  

 
(1) Includes an aggregate of 28 sponsor shares transferred by Sponsor to public stockholders pursuant to the Non-Redemption Agreements, the 

Share Transfer, Non-Redemption and Forward Purchase Agreements. Also includes 3,861 shares subject to the Share Transfer, Non-
Redemption and Forward Purchase Agreements.

(2) No sponsor shares were forfeited pursuant to the Sponsor Agreement. This row reflects that (a) of the 3,250 sponsor shares currently held by 
Sponsor, 1,625 sponsor shares (equal to 50% of the 3,250 sponsor shares issued to sponsor prior to Merida's initial public offering) vested 
upon the closing of the Mergers and (b) all 120,000 Representative Shares vested upon the closing of the Mergers, (c) 28 vested sponsor 
shares were transferred to the public stockholders pursuant to the Share Transfer, Non-Redemption and Forward Purchase Agreements and (d) 
38 vested sponsor shares were transferred to the Note Investors pursuant to the 2022 Note Purchase Agreement.

(3) Amount represents approximately 25,166 shares converted from Leafly Common Stock, 6,141 shares converted from Leafly Preferred Stock, 
and 4,128 shares converted from Leafly convertible notes.

 
Description of the Business Combination
 
Upon the closing of the Business Combination, Merida assumed the name "Leafly Holdings, Inc." The aggregate 
consideration for the Business Combination was estimated to be $385,000 and is payable in the form of shares of Common 
Stock. Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, the following occurred at Closing:

• In the Initial Merger, Merger Sub I merged with and into Leafly, with Leafly being the surviving entity of the 
Initial Merger, and immediately following the Initial Merger and as a part of the same overall transaction as the 
Initial Merger, in the Final Merger Leafly merged with and into Merger Sub II, with Merger Sub II being the 
surviving entity of the Final Merger and a fully-owned subsidiary of Merida;

• the conversion of Leafly Convertible Promissory Notes to Leafly Common Stock immediately prior to the Closing 
in accordance with the Leafly Charter and then approximately 12,573 shares of New Leafly Common Stock at the 
Closing in accordance with the Merger Agreement; and

• the conversion of 18,702 shares of Leafly Preferred Stock to approximately 6,141 shares of New Leafly Common 
Stock at the Closing in accordance with the Merger Agreement.

In addition, and in connection with the forgoing:

• Pursuant to the 2022 Note Purchase Agreement, Merida issued $30,000 in aggregate principal amount of New 
Notes, immediately prior to the closing of the Business Combination. The New Notes bear interest at a rate of 

2



8.00% per annum, paid in cash semi-annually in arrears on July 31 and January 31 of each year, and will mature 
on the Maturity Date of January 31, 2025. The New Notes are convertible into approximately 2,400 shares of New 
Leafly Common Stock at an initial conversion rate of 0.08 shares of New Leafly Common Stock per $1 principal 
amount of New Notes and 0.08 shares of New Leafly Common Stock per $1 amount of accrued and unpaid 
interest, if any, thereon, subject to adjustment for customary events prior to the Maturity Date (the "Conversion 
Rate") which is equivalent to an initial conversion price of $12.50 per share (such conversion price not in 
thousands). Conversion of the New Notes, together with any accrued and unpaid interest, if any, at the time of 
conversion will be settled in shares of New Leafly Common Stock. In addition, pursuant to the 2022 Note 
Purchase Agreement, the Sponsor transferred, for no additional consideration, 38 sponsor shares and 300 Private 
Warrants to the Note Investors.

• Pursuant to the Share Transfer, Non-Redemption and Forward Purchase Agreements, the Public Stockholders 
party thereto agreed not to seek redemption of up to 1,286 Public Shares in connection with the special meeting. 
The Share Transfer, Non-Redemption and Forward Purchase Agreements additionally provide that, immediately 
after the closing of the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, the Sponsor transferred to the Public 
Stockholders an aggregate of 1 sponsor shares beneficially owned by it (or its designees) for every 45 Public 
Shares (such Public Shares not in thousands) not redeemed by the Public Stockholders at the special meeting and 
held at the closing, which equated to 28 shares transferred.

• Pursuant to the Additional Non-Redemption and Forward Purchase Agreements, the Public Stockholders party 
thereto agreed not to seek redemption of up to 2,575 Public Shares in connection with the special meeting.

• Further, pursuant to the Non-Redemption Agreements, the Share Transfer, Non-Redemption and Forward 
Purchase Agreements and the Additional Non-Redemption and Forward Purchase Agreements, the Company 
deposited in escrow, $39,032 of cash released from the trust.

 
The following unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet as of December 31, 2021 and the unaudited pro 
forma condensed combined statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2021 are based on the historical 
financial statements of Merida and Leafly. The unaudited pro forma adjustments are based on information currently 
available, and assumptions and estimates underlying the unaudited pro forma adjustments are described in the 
accompanying notes. Actual results may differ materially from the assumptions used to present the accompanying 
unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information.
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UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

 UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED BALANCE SHEET AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2021

 
Historical

(in thousands)  Merida  Leafly  

Transaction 
 Accounting 
 Adjustments    

Pro Forma 
Combined 

Assets           
Current assets:           

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 176  $ 28,565  $ 18,333   a,b,d  $ 47,074 
Accounts receivable, net   —  2,958   —      2,958 
Deferred transaction costs  — 2,840 (2,840) b  — 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets  182  1,347  —    1,529
Restricted cash   —  130  39,032   a   39,162 

Total current assets   358   35,840   54,525      90,723 
Cash and marketable securities held in trust 

account  90,849   —  (90,849)   a,c,e   — 
Property and equipment, net   —   313   —      313 
Deposits and other assets   —   —   —      — 

Total assets  $ 91,207  $ 36,153  $ (36,324)     $ 91,036 
            
Liabilities and Stockholders Deficit            
Current liabilities:            

Accounts payable  $ 1,602  $ 3,048  $ (1,985)   b  $ 2,665 
Accrued expenses   —   8,325   (1,313)   d   7,012 
Related party payables   817   —   (817)   c   — 
Deferred revenue   —   1,975   —     1,975
Convertible promissory notes  —  31,377  (2,754) d  28,623 

Total current liabilities  2,419  44,725  (6,869)     40,275
Derivative liability 2,175  —  —  2,175 
Warrant liability  6,982   —   —     6,982 

Total liabilities  11,576  44,725  (6,869)     49,432
            
Redeemable common stock  90,831   —  (90,831)   e   — 
            
Stockholders equity            

Series A preferred stock  —  2  (2)   f   — 
Common stock  —  8  —   e,f,g   8 
Additional paid-in-capital  —  61,188  50,421     111,609
Accumulated deficit  (11,200)  (69,770)  10,957      (70,013) 

Total stockholders equity  (11,200)  (8,572)  61,376     41,604
Total liabilities and stockholders 

equity  $ 91,207  $ 36,153  $ (36,324)     $ 91,036 
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Following is detail of the adjustments to additional paid-in capital and accumulated deficit:
 

(in thousands)  

Transaction 
 Accounting 

 Adjustments    
Additional paid-in-capital      
Transaction costs   $ (13,697)   b  
Conversion of convertible notes   31,469   d  
Warrants and shares transferred to New Notes holders   924   d  
Reclass of Merida redeemable stock   41,365   e  
Conversion of Leafly Preferred Stock and Leafly Common Stock   4   f,g  
Reclass of Merida's historical accumulated deficit   (11,200)   h  
Modification of CEO options   1,556   aa  

Total additional paid-in capital   $ 50,421     

Accumulated deficit        
Reclass Merida's historical accumulated deficit   $ 11,200   h  
Elimination of interest expense on convertible notes 1,313 dd
Modification of CEO options   (1,556)   aa  

Total accumulated deficit   $ 10,957     
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UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Historical

(in thousands, except per share amounts)  

Merida 
 (as 

Restated)  Leafly  

Transaction 
 Accounting 

 Adjustments    
Pro Forma 
Combined 

Revenue  $ —  $ 43,036  $ —     $ 43,036 
Cost of revenue   —   4,983   —      4,983 
Gross profit   —   38,053   —      38,053 
            
Operating expenses:            

Sales and marketing   —   19,640   —      19,640 
Product development   —   13,896   —      13,896 
General and administrative   2,699   15,142   1,512   aa,bb   19,353 

Total operating expenses   2,699   48,678   1,512      52,889 
Loss from operations   (2,699)   (10,625)   (1,512)      (14,836) 
Interest income (expense), net and unrealized 

gain   29   (1,349)   (2,299)   cc,dd   (3,619) 
Change in fair values of derivative liabilities   (3,032)   —   64   ff   (2,968) 
Other expense, net   —   (50)   —      (50) 
Loss before income taxes   (5,702)   (12,024)   (3,747)      (21,473) 
Provision for income taxes   —   —   —   ee   — 
Net loss  $ (5,702)  $ (12,024)  $ (3,747)     $ (21,473) 
            
Net loss per share  redeemable common 

stock:            
Weighted average shares outstanding, basic 

and diluted  12,695     (12,695)       
Net loss per share, basic and diluted  $ (0.35)   $ 0.35     
            
Net loss per share  common stock:            
Weighted average shares outstanding, basic 

and diluted  3,370  75,791  (37,862)     41,299
Net loss per share, basic and diluted  $ (0.35)  $ (0.16)  $ (0.01)     $ (0.52) 
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NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

 
Unless otherwise specified, numbers in this section are presented in thousands, except for per share numbers, conversion 
ratios and percentages.
 
1. Basis of Presentation
 
The Business Combination will be accounted for as a reverse recapitalization, in accordance with GAAP. Under this 
method of accounting, Merida will be treated as the "acquired" company for financial reporting purposes. Accordingly, the 
Business Combination will be treated as the equivalent of Leafly issuing stock for the net assets of Merida, accompanied by 
a recapitalization. The net assets of Merida will be stated at historical cost, with no goodwill or other intangible assets 
recorded. Operations prior to the Business Combination will be those of Leafly.
 
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet as of December 31, 2021 assumes that the Business 
Combination occurred on December 31, 2021. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of operations for 
the year ended December 31, 2021 gives pro forma effect to the Business Combination as if it had been completed on 
January 1, 2021. These periods are presented on the basis of Leafly as the accounting acquirer.
 
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet as of December 31, 2021 has been prepared using, and should 
be read in conjunction with, the following:

• Merida's audited balance sheet as of December 31, 2021 and the related notes, included elsewhere in the Proxy 
Statement/Prospectus/Consent Solicitation Statement; and

• Leafly's audited balance sheet as of December 31, 2021 and the related notes, included elsewhere in the Proxy 
Statement/Prospectus/Consent Solicitation Statement.

  
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2021 has been 
prepared using, and should be read in conjunction with, the following:

• Merida's audited statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2021 and the related notes, included 
elsewhere in the Proxy Statement/Prospectus/Consent Solicitation Statement; and

• Leafly's audited statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2021 and the related notes, included 
elsewhere in the Proxy Statement/Prospectus/Consent Solicitation Statement.

 
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information has been prepared assuming no inclusion of the effect 
of any future grants of warrants, post-Business Combination grants of options, the issuance of Earnout Shares, or any 
further financing of Merida or Leafly. Additionally, the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information 
reflects the redemption of 4,942 shares of Common Stock by Merida public stockholders who exercised their right to 
redeem their public shares for a pro rata share of the trust account in January 2022.
 
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information does not give effect to any anticipated synergies, 
operating efficiencies, tax savings, or cost savings that may be associated with the Business Combination.
 
The pro forma adjustments reflecting the consummation of the Business Combination are based on certain currently 
available information and certain assumptions and methodologies that New Leafly believes are reasonable under the 
circumstances. The unaudited condensed combined pro forma adjustments, which are described in the accompanying notes, 
may be revised as additional information becomes available and is evaluated. Therefore, it is likely that the actual 
adjustments will differ from the pro forma adjustments and it is possible the difference may be material. New Leafly 
believes that its assumptions and methodologies provide a reasonable basis for presenting all of the significant effects of 
the Business Combination based on information available to management at this time and that the pro forma adjustments 
give appropriate effect to those assumptions and are properly applied in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined 
financial information.
 
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information is not necessarily indicative of what the actual results 
of operations and financial position would have been had the Business Combination taken place on the dates indicated, nor 
are they indicative of the future consolidated results of operations or financial position of New Leafly. The unaudited pro 
forma condensed combined financial information should be read in conjunction with the historical financial statements and 
notes thereto of Merida and Leafly.
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2. Accounting Policies
 
Following consummation of the Business Combination, management is performing a comprehensive review of Merida's 
and Leafly's accounting policies. As a result of the review, management may identify differences between the accounting 
policies of the two entities which, when conformed, could have a material impact on the financial statements of New 
Leafly. Based on its initial analysis, management did not identify any differences that would have a material impact on the 
unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information. As a result, the unaudited pro forma condensed combined 
financial information does not assume any differences in accounting policies.
 
3. Adjustments to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information
 
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information has been prepared to illustrate the effect of the 
Mergers and has been prepared for informational purposes only.
 
New Leafly is currently finalizing its accounting analysis of the New Notes, and more specifically, the analysis of the 
potential existence of embedded premium or derivatives that should be bifurcated from the New Notes. As a result, the 
adjustments to the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information include adjustments with respect to the 
issuance of the New Notes, and transfer of sponsor shares and private warrants at the time of issuance of the New Notes, 
with $30,000 of proceeds allocated between these instruments using the residual method, as well as the accretion of the 
New Notes to their par value as of the first redemption date 13 months post-issuance through entries to interest expense. 
However, any effect of the analysis of the potential existence of embedded premium or derivatives requiring bifurcation 
from the New Notes has currently been excluded from the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information 
due to the fact that the analysis has not yet been finalized. The adjustments to the unaudited pro forma condensed combined 
financial information reflect the best estimates of New Leafly based on information currently available, and are subject to 
change, based on the outcome of the finalized analysis of the potential existence of embedded premium or derivatives that 
should be bifurcated from the New Notes. Differences between these preliminary estimates and the final accounting could 
be material. The excluded adjustments relate to potential non-cash expenses, the magnitude of which is currently 
indeterminable because a valuation would need to be performed by valuation experts if New Leafly concludes that an 
embedded feature or features require bifurcation. New Leafly expects to finalize the analysis of the potential existence of 
embedded premium or derivatives that should be bifurcated from the New Notes by the time it completes is overall analysis 
for accounting for the Mergers and the associated accounting is reviewed by its auditors through New Leafly's Q1 2022 
quarterly review, no later than the date on which it files a form with the SEC fulfilling its first quarter Form 10-Q 
obligations, currently anticipated to be no later than May 16, 2022.
 
The preceding unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information has been prepared in accordance with 
Article 11 of Regulation S-X as amended by the final rule, Release No. 33-10786 "Amendments to Financial Disclosures 
about Acquired and Disposed Businesses." Release No. 33-10786 replaces the existing pro forma adjustment criteria with 
simplified requirements to depict the accounting for the transaction ("Transaction Accounting Adjustments") and the option 
to present the reasonably estimable synergies and other transaction effects that have occurred or are reasonably expected to 
occur ("Management's Adjustments"). Merida has elected to present Management's Adjustments in addition to Transaction 
Accounting Adjustments in the following unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information. Transaction 
Accounting Adjustments are included in the preceding Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information tables, 
while Management's Adjustments are included only in note 5 within these Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Combined 
Financial Information.
 
The unaudited pro forma basic and diluted earnings per share amounts presented in the unaudited pro forma condensed 
combined statements of operations are based upon the number of shares of New Leafly Common Stock outstanding, 
assuming the Business Combination occurred on January 1, 2021. 
 
Adjustments to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet
 
The adjustments included in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet as of December 31, 2021 are as 
follows:
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(a) Reflects the reclassification of cash held in the Merida's trust account that becomes available at the Closing. 
Amounts available to New Leafly were reduced as a result of redemptions of 4,942 shares of Common Stock 
by Merida stockholders as well as due to $39,032 of cash released from the trust that was deposited in escrow 
at Closing in accordance with the Non-Redemption Agreements, the Share Transfer, Non-Redemption and 
Forward Purchase Agreements and the Additional Non-Redemption and Forward Purchase Agreements and 
classified as restricted cash.  We have not adjusted the figures relating to the Non-Redemption Agreements, the 
Share Transfer, Non-Redemption and Forward Purchase Agreements and the Additional Non-Redemption and 
Forward Purchase Agreements for any immaterial sales subsequent to the Closing, of shares covered by these 
agreements.

 
(b) Reflects the settlement of $14,116 of estimated costs direct and incremental to the transaction. Of the total, 

$3,259 had been recorded as of December 31, 2021, with $1,274 having been paid, and $10,857 had not been 
recorded as of December 31, 2021. These amounts were reclassified (those already recorded) or booked (those 
not yet recorded) to additional paid in capital at Closing.

 
(c) Reflects the settlement of amounts due from Merida to its Sponsor upon the Closing.
 

(d) Reflects the conversion of $31,470 principal of Leafly convertible promissory notes, plus $1,313 of interest 
accrued at December 31, 2021, which converted to New Leafly Common Stock upon the Closing.

Also reflects the issuance of $30,000 principal of New Notes and $360 of estimated associated debt issuance 
costs (excluding the value of sponsor shares and Private Warrants transferred, as discussed below within this 
footnote). Pursuant to the 2022 Note Purchase Agreement, Merida issued $30,000 in aggregate principal 
amount of New Notes, immediately prior to the closing of the Business Combination. The New Notes bear 
interest at a rate of 8.00% per annum, paid in cash semi-annually in arrears on July 31 and January 31 of each 
year, and will mature on January 31, 2025 (the "Maturity Date"). The New Notes are convertible into 
approximately 2,400 shares of New Leafly Common Stock at an initial conversion rate of 0.08 shares of New 
Leafly Common Stock per $1 principal amount of New Notes and 0.08 shares of New Leafly Common Stock 
per $1 amount of accrued and unpaid interest, if any, thereon, subject to adjustment for customary events prior 
to the Maturity Date, which is equivalent to an initial conversion price of $12.50 per share (such conversion 
price not in thousands). Conversion of the New Notes, together with any accrued and unpaid interest, if any, at 
the time of conversion will be settled in shares of New Leafly Common Stock. In addition, pursuant to the 
2022 Note Purchase Agreement, the Sponsor transferred, for no additional consideration, 38 sponsor shares and 
300 Private Warrants to the Note Investors. The value of these transfers is recorded as a reduction of 
convertible promissory notes.

 
(e) Reflects the reclassification of Merida's Common Stock subject to possible redemption to permanent equity at 

$0.0001 par value. As of the Closing, a total of 8,869 shares of Merida's Common Stock had been redeemed 
(including 4,942 in January 2022) and 4,132 shares of Merida's redeemable Common Stock remain outstanding 
as non-redeemable New Leafly Common Stock and will be reclassified to permanent equity.

 
(f) Reflects the conversion of 18,702 shares of Leafly Preferred Stock to approximately 6,141 shares New Leafly 

Common Stock at the Closing in accordance with the Merger Agreement.
 

(g) Reflects the recapitalization of Leafly's equity and issuance of New Leafly Common Stock as consideration for 
the Mergers. Aggregate consideration to be paid in the Mergers is calculated based on an enterprise value of 
$385,000, with further adjustments in accordance with the terms of the Merger Agreement. The total Merger 
Consideration was apportioned between cash and New Leafly Common Stock as follows: (i) each issued and 
outstanding share of Leafly Common Stock (including shares of Leafly Common Stock issued upon conversion 
of the Notes) was automatically converted into the right to receive a number of Merger Shares equal to the 
Exchange Ratio and (ii) each issued and outstanding share of Leafly Preferred Stock was automatically 
converted into the right to receive a number of Merger Shares equal to the Exchange Ratio multiplied by the 
number of shares of Leafly Common Stock issuable upon conversion of such shares of Leafly Preferred Stock.
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The Leafly shareholders described above received 35,434 shares of New Leafly Common Stock and no cash 
from Merida's trust account. Approximately $41,415 in cash was released from Merida's trust account at 
Closing (after giving effect to the redemption of 4,942 shares of Common Stock by holders who exercised their 
right to redeem their shares in January 2022). However, as described in footnote (a), at the Closing, $39,032 of 
cash released from the trust was deposited in escrow in accordance with the Non-Redemption Agreements, the 
Share Transfer, Non-Redemption and Forward Purchase Agreements and the Additional Non-Redemption and 
Forward Purchase Agreements and classified as restricted cash. The balance of the cash released from the trust 
was used to pay a subset of the transaction costs discussed in note (b). We have not adjusted the figures relating 
to the Non-Redemption Agreements, the Share Transfer, Non-Redemption and Forward Purchase Agreements 
and the Additional Non-Redemption and Forward Purchase Agreements for any immaterial sales  subsequent 
to the Closing of shares covered by these agreements.

Additionally, the Leafly shareholders described above and Participants combined will receive on a pro rata 
basis a portion of up to 6,000 restricted shares of New Leafly Common Stock that will vest if New Leafly 
achieves certain earnout thresholds prior to the third anniversary of the Closing. These shares are excluded 
from the pro forma balance sheet adjustments because the shares are subject to forfeiture as of the Closing. See 
the sections entitled "Proposal No. 1 - The Business Combination Proposal - Structure of the Mergers - 
Consideration to Leafly Securityholders and Earnout Plan Participants" in the Proxy Statement/Prospectus/
Consent Solicitation Statement and "Update to the Business Combination Proposal" in the Proxy Supplement 
for more details.

(h) Reflects the reclassification of Merida's historical retained earnings to additional paid in capital as part of the 
Mergers.

Adjustments to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statements of Operations
 
The pro forma adjustments included in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of operations for the year 
ended December 31, 2021 are as follows:

 
(aa) Reflects $1,367 of stock-based compensation expense for the vesting of 50% of the CEO's "Liquidity Event 

Option" immediately prior to close of the Mergers and $189 of stock-based compensation expense for the 
modification of the remaining 50% of the CEO's "Liquidity Event Option" immediately prior to close of the 
Mergers. See further discussion of the terms of these option awards in "Executive and Director 
Compensation of Leafly - 2020 Compensation of Named Executive Officers - Option Awards - Option Award 
Granted to Yoko Miyashita" in the Proxy Statement/Prospectus/Consent Solicitation Statement.

 
(bb) Reflects the elimination of the Merida administrative service fee paid to the Sponsor that ceased.
 

(cc) Reflects the elimination of interest income earned on Meridas trust account due to the release of trust funds 
to cash or the reduction in trust funds due to the redemption of redeemable stock.

 
(dd) Reflects the elimination of $1,313 of interest expense on Leafly's outstanding convertible promissory notes 

that converted to stock upon the close of the Mergers. Also reflects, on the statements of operations, the 
addition of $3,583 of interest expense on the New Notes that were issued upon the close of the Mergers, 
including accretion of $331.

 
(ee) Reflects the income tax effect of pro forma adjustments using the estimated effective tax rate of 0%. In their 

historical periods, Leafly and Merida concluded that it is more likely than not that they will not recognize the 
benefits of federal and state net deferred tax assets and as a result established valuation allowances. For pro 
forma purposes, it is assumed that this conclusion will continue at and subsequent to the close date of the 
Mergers and as such, a 0% effective tax rate is reflected.
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(ff) Reflects the estimated change in fair value of the derivative liability for the shareholder agreements discussed 
in footnote (i) above, over their three month term, using the change in valuation between September 30, 2021 
and December 31, 2021 as a proxy. Actual future changes in fair value are not estimable as of this date and 
may differ materially from this amount.

 
4. Loss per Share
 
Net loss per share was calculated using historical weighted average shares outstanding, and the issuance of additional 
shares in connection with the Business Combination, assuming the shares were outstanding since January 1, 2021. As the 
Business Combination and related equity transactions are being reflected as if they had occurred at the beginning of the 
periods presented, the calculation of weighted average shares outstanding for pro forma basic and diluted net loss per share 
assumes that the shares issuable relating to the Business Combination have been outstanding for the entirety of the period 
presented. 
  
Pro forma net loss   $ (21,473) 
Pro forma weighted average shares outstanding, basic and diluted   41,299
Pro forma net loss per share, basic and diluted   $ (0.52) 

 
The following table provides details of the weighted average shares outstanding in the table above:
 
Merida public stockholders(1)   4,160  
Merida initial stockholders (including Sponsor and EarlyBirdCapital)(2)   1,667  
Merida convertible noteholders   38  

Total Merida   5,865  
Leafly existing securityholders(3)   35,434  
Pro forma weighted average shares outstanding, basic and diluted   41,299  

(1) Includes an aggregate of 28 sponsor shares transferred by Sponsor to public stockholders pursuant to the Non-Redemption Agreements, the 
Share Transfer, Non-Redemption and Forward Purchase Agreements. Also includes 3,861 shares subject to the Share Transfer, Non-
Redemption and Forward Purchase Agreements.

(2) No sponsor shares were forfeited pursuant to the Sponsor Agreement. This row reflects that (a) of the 3,250 sponsor shares currently held by 
Sponsor, 1,625 sponsor shares (equal to 50% of the 3,250 sponsor shares issued to sponsor prior to Meridas initial public offering) vested 
upon the closing of the Mergers and (b) all 120,000 Representative Shares vested upon the closing of the Mergers, (c) 28 vested sponsor 
shares were transferred to the public stockholders pursuant to the Share Transfer, Non-Redemption and Forward Purchase Agreements and (d) 
38 vested sponsor shares were transferred to the Note Investors pursuant to the 2022 Note Purchase Agreement.

(3) Amount represents approximately 25,166 shares converted from Leafly Common Stock, 6,141 shares converted from Leafly Preferred Stock, 
and 4,128 shares converted from Leafly convertible notes.

 
The following potentially dilutive outstanding securities were excluded from the pro forma weighted average shares 
outstanding for the year ended December 31, 2021, because they are not participating securities and their effect would have 
been anti-dilutive, or issuance of such shares is contingent upon the satisfaction of certain conditions which were not 
satisfied by December 31, 2021:
 
Earnout Shares  6,000 (1)  
Merida private placement and public Warrants  10,451 (2)  
Merida sponsor shares and Representative Shares that will be subject to earnout  1,625 (3)  
Shares subject to potential conversion of the New Notes  2,400 (4)  
Shares subject to outstanding Leafly stock options  3,726 (5)  
Total potentially dilutive securities  24,202   

 
(1) Up to 6,000 shares of Common Stock may be issuable to Leafly securityholders and Participants in respect of the Earnout Shares. We cannot 

predict whether or to what extent any or all of the Earnout Shares will be issued.

(2) Amount represents 10,451 Warrants outstanding at December 31, 2021.
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(3) Amount represents the 50% of sponsor shares that became subject to forfeiture per the conditions described under "Proposal No. 1 - The 
Business Combination Proposal - Related Agreements" upon closing of the Business Combination.

(4) This amount represents 2,400 shares of New Leafly Common Stock potentially issuable upon conversion of the New Notes. The New Notes 
are convertible into shares of New Leafly Common Stock at an initial conversion rate of 0.08 shares of New Leafly Common Stock per $1 
principal amount of New Notes and 0.08 shares of New Leafly Common Stock per $1 amount of accrued and unpaid interest, if any, thereon, 
subject to adjustment for customary events prior to the Maturity Date, which is equivalent to an initial conversion price of $12.50 per share 
(such conversion price not in thousands). Conversion of the New Notes, together with any accrued and unpaid interest, if any, at the time of 
conversion will be settled in shares of New Leafly Common Stock. In addition, pursuant to the 2022 Note Purchase Agreement, the Sponsor 
agreed to transfer, for no additional consideration, 38 sponsor shares and 300 Private Warrants to the Note Investors.

(5) Amount represents 11,349 options outstanding upon closing of the Mergers converted to options for New Leafly Common Stock using an 
exchange ratio of 0.3283.

 
Also excluded are any future grants of warrants, any grants of stock options beyond February 4, 2022 under existing or 
future incentive plans, or any further financing of Leafly.
 
Management's Adjustments
 
The tables below show the estimated incremental costs related to Leafly's change in status from a privately held company 
to a publicly traded company after the closing of the Business Combination. Management expects the company to incur 
additional costs, including higher director and officer insurance costs, costs for accounting and legal staff, and other costs 
of complying with SEC and other public company regulations. The estimated costs are presented below as if they had 
occurred on January 1, 2021, and the statutory tax rate used is 0%, consistent with note (ee) above. The adjustments shown 
below include those that Leafly's management deemed necessary for a fair statement of the pro forma information 
presented. The adjustments include forward-looking information that is subject to the safe harbor protections of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and actual results could differ materially from what is presented below as Leafly 
transitions to being a public company.
 

($ in thousands, except per share amounts)  Net Loss  

Basic and 
 Diluted 

 Loss 
 per Share  

Weighted 
 Average 
 Shares  

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021        
Pro forma combined(1)  $ (21,473)  $ (0.52)   41,299  
Public company costs  9,052      
Pro forma combined after managements adjustments  $ (30,525)  $ (0.74)   41,299  

 
(1) As shown in the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2021 in this 8-K.
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